IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., derivatively on
behalf of Reading International, Inc.,

Appellant,
V.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN
COTTER, GUY ADAMS, EDWARD
KANE, DOUGLAS McEACHERN,
WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY CODDING,
MICHAEL WROTNIAK,

Respondents,

and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a
Nevada Corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

Steve Morris, Esq. (#1543)
Akke Levin, Esq. (#9102)
Morris Law Group

411 E. Bonneville Ave., Ste. 360
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Telephone: (702) 474-9400

Attorneys for Appellant
James J. Cotter, Jr.

Electronically Filed

Jan 22 2019 01:17 p.m.
Supreme Courig(iase Np: A753893wvn

Clerk of Supreme Court

JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF
APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF

- VOLUME XVIII (JA4251-4500)

Docket 75053 Document 2019-03253



JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX
Date Description Vol. # Page Nos.
2015-06-12 Complaint I JA1-JA29
2015-06-16 | AOS William Gould I JA30-JA31
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS — Timothy Storey I JA32-JA33
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Guy Adams I JA34-JA35
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Edward Kane I JA36-JA37
2015-06-18 | Amended AQOS - Ellen Cotter I JA38-JA39
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - RDI I JA40-JA41
2015-06-18 émended AQS - Margaret I JA42-TA43
otter
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Douglas
McEachern 5 I JA44-JA45
2015-10-22 Eirst Amended Verified I JA46-TA95
omplaint
2015-11-10 | Scheduling Order and Order
Setting Civil Jury Trial, Pre-Trial I JA96-JA99
Conference and Calendar Call
2016-03-14 | Answer to First Amended
Complaint filed by Margaret
Cotter, Ellen Cotter, Douglas I JA100-JA121
McEachern, Guy Adams, and
Edward Kane
2016-03-29 Reading International, Inc.
(“RDI”)'s Answer to James J.
Cotter, Jr.'s First Amended I JA122-JA143
Complaint
2016-04-05 | Judy Codding and Michael
Wrotniak's Answer to First I JA144-JA167
Amended Complaint
2016-09-02 ?:econd Amended Verified I JA168-JA224
omplaint
2016-09-23 | Defendant William Gould's MS]
(pages 1 through 19) I JA225-JA250
2016-09-23 | Defendant William Gould's MS]J

(pages 20 through 39)

II

JA251-JA263
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-09-23

Appendix of Exhibits to
Defendant William Gould’s MSJ
(through Exhibit 23)

II

JA264-TA268

2016-09-23

Exhibit A — Declaration of
William Gould ISO MSJ

II

JA269-JA272

2016-09-23

Exhibit B — Declaration of
Shoshana E. Bannett ISO
William Gould’s MSJ

II

JA273-JA279

Exhibits 1-46 ISO Declaration of
Shoshana E. Bannett ISO
William Gould’s MS]J

I1, 111,
IV, vV

JA280-JA1049

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants’ Motion
for Summary Judgment (No. 1)
Re: Plaintiff's Termination and

Reinstatement Claims

V, VI,
VII,
VIII

JA1050-JA1862
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 2) Re: The Issue of Director
Independence (“Partial MSJ No.
2//)

VIII,
IX, X

JA1863-JA2272
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 3) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Purported
Unsolicited Offer (“Partial MS]
No. 3”)

JA2273-JA2366

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 4) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Executive
Committee (“Partial MSJ] No. 4”)

JA2367-JA2477
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 5) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Appointment of
Ellen Cotter as CEO (“Partial
MSJ No. 5”)

X, XI

JA2478-JA2744
(Under Seal)
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 6) Re Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Estate's Option
Exercise, the Appointment of
Margaret Cotter, the
Compensation Packages of Ellen
Cotter and Margaret Cotter, and
the Additional Compensation to
Margaret Cotter and Guy
Adams (“Partial MSJ No. 6”)

XI, XII,
XIII,
XIV

JA2745-]A3275
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Plaintiff James Cotter Jr.’s
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

X1V

JA3276-JA3310

2016-09-23

Declaration of James J. Cotter,
Jr., ISO James J. Cotter Jr.’s
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

XIV

JA3311-JA3315

2016-09-23

Appendix of Exhibits and Table
of Contents re Declaration of
James J. Cotter, Jr., ISO James ]J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

X1V

JA3316-JA3318

2016-09-23

Exhibits 1-46 ISO Declaration of
James J. Cotter, Jr., ISO James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

X1V,
XV

JA3319-JA3726
(Under Seal)

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to Individual
Defendants’ Partial MSJ No. 1

XV

JA3725-JA3735

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to the Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 2 re The
Issue of Director Independence

XV,
XVI

JA3736-JA3757

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to the Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 4 re
Plaintiff’s Claims Related to The
Executive Committee

XVI

JA3758-JA3810

2016-10-13

Individual Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVI

JA3811-JA3846
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-10-23

Declaration of Counsel Noah S.
Helpern ISO the Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment with
Exhibits 1-18

XVI

JA3847-JA3930
(Under Seal)

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 1) re
Plaintiff’s Termination and
Reinstatement Claims

XVI

JA3931-JA3962

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re
The Issue of Director
Independence

XVI

JA3963-JA3990

2016-10-13

Individual Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVI,
XVII

JA3991-JA4009

2016-10-13

RDI's Joinder to Individual
Defendants” Opposition to
Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVII

JA4010-JA4103

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter Jr.'s
Opposition to Defendant
Gould's Motion for Summary
Judgment

XVII

JA4104-JA4140

2016-10-17

Appendix of Exhibits ISO
Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 1) re
Plaintiff’s Termination and
Reinstatement Claims

XVII,
XVIII

JA4141-JA4328
(Under Seal)
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-10-17

Appendix of Exhibits ISO
Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re:
The Issue of Director
Independence

XVIII,
XIX

JA4329-JA4507
(Under Seal)

2016-10-17

Appendix of Exhibits ISO Cotter,
Jr.'s Opposition to Gould's MS]

XIX

JA4508-] A4592
(Under Seal)

2016-10-21

Individual Defendants” Reply
ISO of their Partial MSJ No. 1

XIX

JA4593-JA4624

2016-10-21

Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re
the Issue of Director
Independence

XIX

JA4625-JA4642

2016-10-21

RDI Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 1

XIX

JA4643-JA4652

2016-10-21

RDI Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 2

XIX

JA4653-JA4663

2016-10-21

RDI’s Reply ISO William
Gould’s MSJ

XIX

JA4664-TA4669

2016-10-21

Defendant William Gould’s
Reply ISO Motion for Summary
Judgment (including decl. and
exhibits)

XIX

JA4670-JA4695

2016-10-21

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett ISO Defendant William
Gould’s Reply ISO MS]J

XIX

JA4696-JA4737

2016-10-26

Individual Defendants’
Objections to the Declaration of
James J. Cotter, Jr. Submitted in
Opposition to all Individual
Defendants” Motions for Partial
Summary Judgment

XX

JA4738-JA4749

2016-11-01

Transcript of Proceedings re:
Hearing on Motions, October 27,
2016

XX

JA4750-JA4904

2016-12-20

RDI’s Answer to Plaintiff's
Second Amended Complaint

XX

JA4905-JA4930
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-12-21

Order Re Individual Defendants'
Partial MSJ Nos. 1-6 and MIL to
Exclude Expert Testimony

XX

JA4931-JA4934

2016-12-22

Notice of Entry of Order on
Partial MSJ Nos. 1-6 and MIL to

Exclude Expert Testimony

XX

JA4935-JA4941

2016-10-04

1st Amended Order Setting Civil
Jury Trial, Pre-Trial Conference,
and Calendar Call

XX

JA4942-A4945

2017-11-09

Individual Defendants’
Supplement to Partial MS] Nos.
1,2,3,5, and 6

XX,
XXI

JA4946-JA5000
(Under Seal)

2017-11-27

Transcript of 11-20-2017 Hearing
on Motion for Evidentiary
Hearing re Cotter, Jr., Motion to
Seal EXs 2, 3 and 5 to James
Cotter Jr.'s MIL No. 1

XXI

JA5001-JA5020

2017-11-28

Individual Defendants” Answer
to Plaintiff's Second Amended
Complaint

XXI

JA5021-JA5050

2017-12-01

Request For Hearing On
Defendant William Gould's
Previously-Filed MS]

XXI

JA5051-JA5066

2017-12-01

Cotter Jr.’s Supplemental
Opposition to Partial MSJ Nos. 1
and 2 and Gould MS]J

XXI

JA5067-JA5080

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
SUPP OPPS to Motions for
Summary Judgment Nos. 1 and
2 and Gould Summary
Judgment

XXI

JA5081-JA5091

2017-12-01

Plaintift’s Supplemental OPPS to
MSJ Nos. 2 and 5 and Gould

Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5092-JA5107

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintiff’s Supplemental OPPS to
MS]J Nos. 2 and 5 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5108-JA5225
(Under Seal)
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2017-12-01

Plaintiff’s Supplemental OPPS to
MMSJ Nos. 2 and 6 and Gould

Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5226-JA5237

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintiff’s Supplemental OPPS to
MSJ Nos. 2 and 6 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII

JA5238-JA5285

2017-12-01

Plaintiff James Cotter Jr’s
Supplemental Opposition to So-
Called Summary Judgment
Motions Nos. 2 and 3 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII

JA5286-JA5306

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintiff James Cotter Jr’s
Supplemental Opposition to So-
Called Summary Judgment
Motions Nos. 2 and 3 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII,
XXIII

JA5307-JA5612

2017-12-04

Defendant William Gould's
Supplemental Reply ISO of MSJ

XXIII

JA5613-JA5629

2017-12-05

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett ISO William Gould’s
Supplemental Reply ISO MS]

XXIII,
XXIV

JA5630-JA5760

2017-12-04

Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” Renewed Motions
for Partial Summary Judgment
Nos. 1 and 2

XXIV

JA5761-JA5790

2017-12-08

Joint Pre-Trial Memorandum

XXIV

JTA5791-JA5822

2017-12-11

Transcript from December 11,
2017 Hearing on Motions for
[Partial] Summary Judgment,
Motions In Limine, and Pre-Trial
Conference

XXIV

JA5823-JA5897

2017-12-19

Cotter Jr.”s Motion for
Reconsideration or Clarification
of Ruling on Partial MSJ Nos. 1,
2 and 3 and Gould's Summary
Judgment Motion and
Application for Order
Shortening Time (“Motion for
Reconsideration”)

XXV

JA5898-JA6014
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2017-12-26

Individual Defendants'
Opposition To Plaintiff's

Motion For Reconsideration or
Clarification of Ruling on
Motions for Summary Judgment
Nos 1,2 and 3

XXV

JA6015-JA6086

2017-12-27

Gould’s Opposition to Plaintiff's
Motion for Reconsideration of
Ruling on Gould’s MSJ

XXV

JA6087-JA6091

2017-12-27

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett in Support of Gould’s
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
for Reconsideration of Ruling on
Gould’s MSJ

XXV,
XXVI

JA6092-JA6169

2017-12-28

Order Re Individual Defendants'
Motions for Partial Summary
Judgment and Defendants’
Motions in Limine

XXVI

JA6170-JA6176

2017-12-28

Motion [to] Stay and Application
for OST

XXVI

JA6177-JA6185

2017-12-29

Transcript of 12-28-2017 Hearing
on Motion for Reconsideration
and Motion for Stay

XXVI

JA6186-JA6209

2017-12-28

Court Exhibit 1-Reading Int'],
Inc. Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda to 12-28-17 Hearing

XXVI

JA6210-JA6211
(Under Seal)

2017-12-29

Notice of Entry of Order Re
Individual Defendants' Partial
MS]Js, Gould’s Motion for
Summary Judgment, and
parties” Motions in Limine

XXVI

JA6212-JA6222

2017-12-29

Cotter Jr.’s Motion for Rule 54(b)
Certification and for Stay & OST

XXVI

JA6223-JA6237

2018-01-02

Individual Defendants'
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
for Rule 54(b) Certification and
Stay

XXVI

JA6238-JA6245

2018-01-03

Cotter Jr.” Reply ISO Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification and Stay

XXVI

JA6246-JA6253
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2018-01-04

Order Granting Plaintiff's
Motion for Rule 54(b)
Certification

XXVI

JA6254-TA6256

2018-01-04

Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion
to Stay and Motion for
Reconsideration

XXVI

JA6257-JA6259

2018-01-04

The Remaining Director
Defendants” Motion for
Judgment as a Matter of Law

XXVI

JA6260-JA6292

2018-01-04

Notice of Entry of Order
Granting Plaintiff's Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification

XXVI

JA6293-JA6299
(Under Seal)

2018-01-04

Notice of Entry of Order
Denying Plaintiff's Motion to
Stay and Motion for
Reconsideration

XXVI

JA6300-JA6306

2018-01-05

Transcript of January 4, 2018
Hearing on Plaintiff's Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification

XXVI

JA6307-JA6325

2018-02-01

Notice of Appeal

XXVI

JA6326-TA6328
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Date Description Vol. # Page Nos.
2016-10-04 1st Amended Order Setting Civil

Jury Trial, Pre-Trial Conference, XX | JA4942-A4945

and Calendar Call
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Douglas

McEachern 5 I JA44-JA4S
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Edward Kane I JA36-JA37
2015-06-18 | Amended AQOS - Ellen Cotter I JA38-JA39
2015-06-18 | Amended AOS - Guy Adams I JA34-JA35
2015-06-18 ég;f;ded AQS - Margaret I JA42-TA43
2015-06-18 | Amended AQOS - RDI I JA40-JA41
2015-06-18 | Amended AQOS — Timothy Storey | JA32-JA33
2016-03-14 | Answer to First Amended

Complaint filed by Margaret

Cotter, Ellen Cotter, Douglas I JA100-JA121

McEachern, Guy Adams, and

Edward Kane
2015-06-16 | AOS William Gould | JA30-JA31
2016-09-23 | Appendix of Exhibits and Table

of Contents re Declaration of

James J. Cotter, Jr., ISO James J. XIV | JA3316-JA3318

Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial

Summary Judgment
2016-10-17 | Appendix of Exhibits ISO Cotter, xpx | JA4508-JA4592

Jr.'s Opposition to Gould's MSJ (Under Seal)
2016-10-17 | Appendix of Exhibits ISO

Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s

Opposition to Individual

D}e)f};ndants' Motion for Partial i\\;gi {éiailr_gz;%%

Summary Judgment (No. 1) re
Plaintiff’s Termination and
Reinstatement Claims
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-10-17

Appendix of Exhibits ISO
Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re:
The Issue of Director
Independence

XVIII,
XIX

JA4329-JA4507
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Appendix of Exhibits to
Defendant William Gould’s MS]J
(through Exhibit 23)

II

JA264-JA268

2015-06-12

Complaint

TAT-JA29

2018-01-03

Cotter Jr.” Reply ISO Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification and Stay

XXVI

JA6246-TA6253

2017-12-19

Cotter Jr.”s Motion for
Reconsideration or Clarification
of Ruling on Partial MSJ Nos. 1,
2 and 3 and Gould's Summary
Judgment Motion and
Application for Order
Shortening Time (“Motion for
Reconsideration”)

XXV

JA5898-JA6014

2017-12-29

Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Rule 54(b)
Certification and for Stay & OST

XXVI

JA6223-JA6237

2017-12-01

Cotter Jr.’s Supplemental
Opposition to Partial MSJ Nos. 1
and 2 and Gould MSJ

XXI

JA5067-JA5080

2017-12-28

Court Exhibit 1-Reading Int'],
Inc. Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda to 12-28-17 Hearing

XXVI

JA6210-JA6211
(Under Seal)

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintiff James Cotter Jr’s
Supplemental Opposition to So-
Called Summary Judgment
Motions Nos. 2 and 3 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII,
XXIII

JA5307-JA5612

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintift’s Supplemental OPPS to
MS]J Nos. 2 and 5 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5108-JA5225
(Under Seal)
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
Plaintiff’s Supplemental OPPS to
MS]J Nos. 2 and 6 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII

JA5238-JA5285

2017-12-01

Declaration of Akke Levin ISO
SUPP OPPS to Motions for
Summary Judgment Nos. 1 and
2 and Gould Summary
Judgment

XXI

JA5081-JA5091

2016-10-23

Declaration of Counsel Noah S.
Helpern ISO the Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment with
Exhibits 1-18

XVI

JA3847-JA3930
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Declaration of James J. Cotter,
Jr., ISO James J. Cotter Jr.’s
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

XIV

JA3311-JA3315

2017-12-27

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett in Support of Gould’s
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
for Reconsideration of Ruling on
Gould’s MSJ

XXV,
XXVI

JA6092-JA6169

2016-10-21

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett ISO Defendant William
Gould’s Reply ISO MSJ

XIX

JA4696-JA4737

2017-12-05

Declaration of Shoshana E.
Bannett ISO William Gould’s
Supplemental Reply ISO MS]

XXIII,
XXIV

JA5630-JA5760

2016-10-21

Defendant William Gould’s
Reply ISO Motion for Summary
Judgment (including decl. and
exhibits)

XIX

JA4670-JA4695

2016-09-23

Defendant William Gould's MS]
(pages 1 through 19)

JA225-JA250

2016-09-23

Defendant William Gould's MS]J
(pages 20 through 39)

II

JA251-JA263

2017-12-04

Defendant William Gould's
Supplemental Reply ISO of MS]

XXIII

JA5613-JA5629
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-09-23

Exhibit A — Declaration of
William Gould ISO MS]J

II

JA269-JA272

2016-09-23

Exhibit B — Declaration of
Shoshana E. Bannett ISO
William Gould’s MSJ

II

JA273-JA279

2016-09-23

Exhibits 1-46 ISO Declaration of
James J. Cotter, Jr., ISO James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

X1V,
XV

JA3319-JA3724
(Under Seal)

Exhibits 1-46 ISO Declaration of
Shoshana E. Bannett ISO
William Gould’s MSJ

I1, I1I,
IV, vV

JA280-JA1049

2015-10-22

First Amended Verified
Complaint

JA46-TA95

2017-12-27

Gould’s Opposition to Plaintiff's
Motion for Reconsideration of
Ruling on Gould’s MSJ

XXV

JA6087-JA6091

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 2) Re: The Issue of Director
Independence (“Partial MSJ No.
2//)

VIII,
IX, X

JA1863-JA2272
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 3) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Purported
Unsolicited Offer (“Partial MS]
No. 3”)

JA2273-JA2366

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 4) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Executive
Committee (“Partial MSJ No. 4”)

JA2367-] A2477
(Under Seal)

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 5) On Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Appointment of
Ellen Cotter as CEO (“Partial
MSJ No. 5”)

X, XI

JA2478-JA2744
(Under Seal)
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants' Motion
for Partial Summary Judgment
(No. 6) Re Plaintiff's Claims
Related to the Estate's Option
Exercise, the Appointment of
Margaret Cotter, the
Compensation Packages of Ellen
Cotter and Margaret Cotter, and
the Additional Compensation to
Margaret Cotter and Guy
Adams (“Partial MSJ No. 6”)

XI, XII,
XIII,
XIV

JA2745-]A3275
(Under Seal)

2017-12-26

Individual Defendants'
Opposition To Plaintiff's
Motion For Reconsideration or
Clarification of Ruling on

Motions for Summary Judgment
Nos 1,2 and 3

XXV

JA6015-JA6086

2018-01-02

Individual Defendants'
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
for Rule 54(b) Certification and
Stay

XXVI

JA6238-JA6245

2017-11-28

Individual Defendants” Answer
to Plaintiff's Second Amended
Complaint

XXI

JA5021-JA5050

2016-09-23

Individual Defendants” Motion
for Summary Judgment (No. 1)
Re: Plaintiff's Termination and

Reinstatement Claims

V, VI,
VII,
VIII

JA1050-JA1862
(Under Seal)

2016-10-26

Individual Defendants’
Objections to the Declaration of
James J. Cotter, Jr. Submitted in
Opposition to all Individual
Defendants” Motions for Partial
Summary Judgment

XX

JA4738-JA4749

2016-10-13

Individual Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVI

JA3811-JA3846
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-10-13

Individual Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiff James ]J.
Cotter Jr.”s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVIJ,
XVII

JA3991-JA4009

2016-10-21

Individual Defendants” Reply
ISO of their Partial MSJ No. 1

XIX

JA4593-JA4624

2017-11-09

Individual Defendants’
Supplement to Partial MS] Nos.
1,2,3,5, and 6

XX,
XXI

JA4946-]JA5000
(Under Seal)

2017-12-08

Joint Pre-Trial Memorandum

XXIV

JA5791-JA5822

2016-04-05

Judy Codding and Michael
Wrotniak's Answer to First
Amended Complaint

I

JA144-JA167

2017-12-28

Motion [to] Stay and Application
for OST

XXVI

JA6177-JA6185

2018-02-01

Notice of Appeal

XXVI

JA6326-TA6328

2018-01-04

Notice of Entry of Order
Denying Plaintiff's Motion to
Stay and Motion for
Reconsideration

XXVI

JA6300-JA6306

2018-01-04

Notice of Entry of Order
Granting Plaintiff's Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification

XXVI

JA6293-JA6299
(Under Seal)

2016-12-22

Notice of Entry of Order on

Partial MSJ Nos. 1-6 and MIL to
Exclude Expert Testimony

XX

JA4935-JA4941

2017-12-29

Notice of Entry of Order Re
Individual Defendants' Partial
MSJs, Gould’s Motion for
Summary Judgment, and
parties’ Motions in Limine

XXVI

JA6212-JA6222

2018-01-04

Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion
to Stay and Motion for
Reconsideration

XXVI

JA6257-JA6259

2018-01-04

Order Granting Plaintiff's
Motion for Rule 54(b)
Certification

XXVI

JA6254-JA6256

2017-12-28

Order Re Individual Defendants'
Motions for Partial Summary
Judgment and Defendants’
Motions in Limine

XXVI

JA6170-JA6176
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JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF

Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-12-21

Order Re Individual Defendants'
Partial MSJ Nos. 1-6 and MIL to
Exclude Expert Testimony

XX

JA4931-JA4934

2016-09-23

Plaintiff James Cotter Jr.’s
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

X1V

JA3276-JA3310

2017-12-01

Plaintiff James Cotter Jr’s
Supplemental Opposition to So-
Called Summary Judgment
Motions Nos. 2 and 3 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXII

JA5286-JA5306

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter Jr.'s
Opposition to Defendant
Gould's Motion for Summary
Judgment

XVII

JA4104-JA4140

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 1) re
Plaintiff’s Termination and
Reinstatement Claims

XVI

JA3931-JA3962

2016-10-13

Plaintiff James J. Cotter, Jr.'s
Opposition to Individual
Defendants' Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re
The Issue of Director
Independence

XVI

JA3963-JA3990

2017-12-01

Plaintiff’s Supplemental OPPS to

MMSJ Nos. 2 and 6 and Gould
Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5226-JA5237

2017-12-01

Plaintift’s Supplemental OPPS to
MSJ Nos. 2 and 5 and Gould

Summary Judgment Motion

XXI

JA5092-JA5107

2016-10-21

RDI Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 1

XIX

JA4643-JA4652

2016-10-21

RDI Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 2

XIX

JA4653-JA4663

2016-12-20

RDI’s Answer to Plaintiff's
Second Amended Complaint

XX

JA4905-JA4930

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to Individual
Defendants’ Partial MSJ No. 1

XV

JA3725-JA3735
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JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF

Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to the Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 2 re The
Issue of Director Independence

XV,
XVI

JA3736-JA3757

2016-10-03

RDI’s Joinder to the Individual
Defendants” MSJ No. 4 re
Plaintiff’s Claims Related to The
Executive Committee

XVI

JA3758-JA3810

2016-10-21

RDI’s Reply ISO William
Gould’s MSJ

XIX

JA4664-TA4669

2016-10-13

RDI's Joinder to Individual
Defendants” Opposition to
Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

XVII

JA4010-JA4103

2016-03-29

Reading International, Inc.
(“RDI"”)'s Answer to James ]J.
Cotter, Jr.'s First Amended
Complaint

JA122-JA143

2016-10-21

Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (No. 2) re
the Issue of Director
Independence

XIX

JA4625-JA4642

2017-12-04

Reply ISO Individual
Defendants” Renewed Motions

for Partial Summary Judgment
Nos. 1 and 2

XXIV

JA5761-JA5790

2017-12-01

Request For Hearing On
Defendant William Gould's
Previously-Filed MS]

XXI

JA5051-JA5066

2015-11-10

Scheduling Order and Order
Setting Civil Jury Trial, Pre-Trial
Conference and Calendar Call

JA96-JA99

2016-09-02

Second Amended Verified
Complaint

JA168-JA224

2018-01-04

The Remaining Director
Defendants” Motion for
Judgment as a Matter of Law

XXVI

JA6260-JA6292




JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF

Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2017-12-11

Transcript from December 11,
2017 Hearing on Motions for
[Partial] Summary Judgment,
Motions In Limine, and Pre-Trial
Conference

XXIV

JA5823-JA5897

2017-11-27

Transcript of 11-20-2017 Hearing
on Motion for Evidentiary
Hearing re Cotter, Jr., Motion to
Seal EXs 2, 3 and 5 to James
Cotter Jr.'s MIL No. 1

XXI

JA5001-JA5020

2017-12-29

Transcript of 12-28-2017 Hearing
on Motion for Reconsideration
and Motion for Stay

XXVI

JA6186-JA6209

2018-01-05

Transcript of January 4, 2018
Hearing on Plaintiff's Motion for
Rule 54(b) Certification

XXVI

JA6307-JA6325

2016-11-01

Transcript of Proceedings re:
Hearing on Motions, October 27,
2016

XX

JA4750-J A4904




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that on the 22nd day of January 2019, | served a copy of
JOINT APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF APPELLANT’S OPENING BRIEF
VOLUME XVIII (JA4251-4500) upon all counsel of record:

X] By mailing it by first class mail with sufficient postage prepaid
to the following address(es); via email and/or through the court’s efiling

service:

Stan Johnson Mark Ferrario

Cohen-Johnson, LLC Kara Hendricks

255 East Warm Springs Road, Ste. 110 Tami Cowden

Las Vegas, NV 89119 Greenberg Traurig, LLP
10845 Griffith Peak Dr.

Christopher Tayback Las Vegas, NV 89135

Marshall Searcy Attorneys for Nominal

Quinn Emanuel Urquhart & Sullivan LLP Defendant Reading

865 South Figueroa Street, 10th Floor International, Inc.

Los Angeles, CA 90017
christayback@quinnemanuel.com
marshallsearcy@quinnemanuel.com

Attorneys for Respondents Edward Kane,
Douglas McEachern, Judy Codding, and
Michael Wrotniak

Ara H. Shirinian, Settlement Judge
10651 Capesthorne Way

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135
arashirinian@cox.net

By: /s/ Patricia A. Quinn
An employee of Morris Law Group
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF LOCS ANGELES )

I, GRACE CHUMNG, RMR, CRR, CSR No. 8246, a
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the County
of Los Angeles, the State of California, do hereby
certify:

That, prior to being examined, the witness
named in the foregoing deposition was by me duly
sworn to testify the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth;

That said deposition was taken down by me
in shorthand at the time and place therein named,
and thereafter reduced to typewriting by
computer—-aided transcription under my direction.

1 further certify that I am not interested
in the event of the action.

In witﬁess whereof, I have hereunto subscribed my
name. »

Dated: August 10, 2016

GRACE CHUNG, CSR NO. 6248
RMR, CRR, CLR

Litigation Sexrvices | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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REPORTED BY:

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY,

JAMES J. COTTER, JR.,
derivatively on behalf of
Reading International, Inc.,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN
COTTER, GUY ADAMS, EDWARD
KaNE, DOUGLAS McEACHERN,
TIMOTHY STOREY, WILLLIAM
GQULD, and DOES 1 through
100, inclusive,

Defendants,
and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
a Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

Complete caption, next page.

NEVADA
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Case No.
A-15-71%860-B

Case No.
P-14-082942-E

Related and
Coordinated . Cases

VIDEOTAFED DEPOSITION OF GUY ADAMS

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

FRIDAY, APRIL 29, 2016

VOLUME II

JOB NUMBER 305149

LORI RAYE, CSR NO. 7052

JA4257



GUY ADAMS, VOLUME IT - 04/29/2Q1¢é

Page 366

1 (Exhibit 82 was marked for

2 identification.)

3 THE WITNESS: Yes, I remember this.

4 BY MR. KRUM: |

5 . Q. You recognize Exhibit 8272

6 a, Yes.

7 0. This iz an email exchange you had with

8 Mr, Kane on May 18 and 19?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. During the telephone conversation you had
11 with him on May -- Sunday or Monday, ﬁay 17 or 18,
12 did the two of you discuss cther wmotions?

13 A, Evidently not.

14 Q. What was your understanding as of the

15 date of —— as of May 1B and 19, what the other
16 motions ware or might be?

17 A. Well, there were like two other motioné.
1B  One was the removal of Jim Junior as CEC and
19 presidept. Another motion -~ there were three

20  motions. One of them was to -- if you remove the
21 CEO, you have to appoint an interim CEC, And there
22 was a third motion which, I apologize, for the life
23  of me, I can't remember what it is. There must be
24 a board agenda or something with those items.

25 Q. The subject of interim CEO, where did

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112

www.litigationservices.com
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Page 367

that stand as of May 19&h?

A. Ellen, Margaret and Ed and Doug McEachern
were of the opinion, yes, on an interim basgis.

Q. Yes what?

A. Yes to Guy Adams being the interim CEO on
a-short—term basis.

Q. What about Ed Kane?

A. As interim?

Q. Okay. I'm sorry.

So how did you know that each of Ellen,
Margaret, Ed Kane and Doug McEachern were agreeable
to you being appointed CEO on an interim —- interim
CEO or a short-term basis?

MR. TAYBACK: Objection to the extent it’s
asked and answered.

You can answex.

THE WITNESS: My recolléction —— and I can't
remember if it was Ellen or Ed Kane —— one of them
told me and I followed up with a phone call to Doug
McBachern to confirm it. So that's how I knew.

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Ckay. When did yon have the follow-up
phope call with Doug McEachern? )

A. Help me —— what was thée date of the

meeting, that meeting? We're up to May 19. What

Litigation Services | 1.800.33D.1112
www,litigationservices.comn
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GUY ADAMS, VOLUME II ~ 04/29/2016

Page 378

1 . A.  No.

2 Q. Did you have a practice of sitting down
3 and chatting with Ellen when you were in the

4 office?

5 A, Yes, when she'd come in my officé.

6 Q. So directing your attention to those

7 three or four conversations when you were in RDI's
8 officés and you spoke to Ellen about the status of
9 the CEO search, doing them sequentially, if you're
10 able to do so, who said what in the first
11 conversation?

12 A. That's a real test of my memory but I'li
13 try.
14 I remember when she was —- we talked
15 about how we were paying for it and there was like
16 a psycholoéical profile'they would do in addition.
17 Since we weren't hiring the real estate guy, there
18 was some things about the financial arrangement

19 there. And she told me about that. That was one
20 conversation, probably one of the earlier ones.
21 Then the -- T had another conversation
22 with her about the candidates that were -- the
23 résumés that were coming in, and she commented to
24 me about the, quote, Some of them want more than a
25 million dollars.

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
www,litigationservices.com
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GUY ADAMS, VOLUME II - 04/29/2016

' ’ ' Page 379
And then maybe the third conversation we

1
2  had about it was, I'm not on the committee, it's
3 not my business, but I gave her my thoughts about
4 it, as I mentioned yesterday in my testimony, that
5 the only concern I had was the person we get would
6 be with us for a while and not just looking to make
7 a notch on his belt, come aboard —— for example,
8 come aboard, stay for a year or two, sell an asset,
9 do something to jazz the stock up and then he would
10 leave and go to a bigger company; we'd be his
11 training ground.
12 And I just suggested to her that she look
13 for a candidate who would have longevity of these
14 candidates that she was looking at. When I had
-15 that conversation, I had no notion she was putting
16 her name in the hat at the time. That was the last
17 coﬁversation I had with her.
18 ‘I'm sorry. Then a period of time, which
19 I don't remember, went by and she says, You know,
20 I'm looking at these people and I think I can do
21 the job. I want to put my name in the hat.
22 I said, Well, you can't be on the
23 committee if you do that. She says, Yeah, I'm
24 going to resign. I said, Okay, it's up to the
25 committee,
Litigation Serxvices | 1.800.330.1112

www.litigationservices.com
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ;53-

I, Lori Raye, a duly commissioned and
licensed court reporter for the State of
California, do hereby certify:

That I reported the taking of the deposition
of the witness, GUY ADAMS, commmencing on Friday,
April 29, 2016 at 9:10 a.m.;

That prior to being examined, the witness was,
by me, placed under oath to testify to the truth;
that said deposition was taken down by me
stenographically and thereafter transcribed;
that said deposition is a complete, true and
accuraﬁe transcription of said stenographic notes.

I further certify that I am not a relative or
an employee of any party to said actiom, nor in
anywise interested in the outcome thereof: that a
requést has been made to review the transcript. ‘

In witness whereof, I have hereunto
subscribed my name this 2nd day of May 2016.

N e

LORLI RAYE
C5R Neo. 7052

Litigation Services { 1.800.330.1112
www.litigationservices.com
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EXHIBIT 24

(Filed Separately Under Seal)
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(Filed Separately Under Seal)
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READINSEG

INTERHATIONAL

June 15, 20158

Jamas J. Cofier, Jr.
311 Homewood Rd
Los Angelas, CA 30049

Dear Jim:

As you are aware, your Employment Agreement (the “Agreament’) with Reading Infernational,
Inc. {the “Company"), and your employment with and position as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, has been feminated effsclive Friday, June 12, 2015. Fursuant to

- Bection 11 of your Agreement, this termination obligates you 1o resign immediately from the
Board of Directors of the Company,. This fetter shall serve as natice that your failure to resigr
from fhe Board of Diraciors places you in material breach of your Agreement. You have 30
days from today to cire this breach by submitting your written resignation from the Board of
Directors. Failure to do so within 30 days will result in you forfeiting any compensation or
beneflts you right atherwise have been entitled to under your Agreament.

You must afso immediately return any Company property, documents, or data that you may
have [n your pussession, You may arrange for the return of these ltems, as well as for your
perscnal belongings at the office fo be cotiected. by having your atforney contact the Comparny's
atiorney, Gary Melaughlin at Akin Gump Strauss Hauar & Feld {310-728-3368).

This letter is without prejudice fo any of the Company's rights or remedies, all of which are
expressly reservsd,

Very Truly Yours,

200, M

Eilen M. Cotler

Feuding Internationzd, Inz.
G100 entor Biive, Suite Y30
Los dngeles, Califarnia S845

§ 2332353230 B 2(3,235 7029 www.readingrdiaom
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UNTTED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washhigton, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K
_ _ Current Report .
Pureuant to Seotion 13 or 18{d) of the Securities Exchange Actof 19M

Thate of Report {Dste of Parliest Eveot Hepatedh: hune 12, 2085
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ITEM 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officery; Blection of
gixgéﬁg?; 3 mment of Cértain Offfcers; Compeisntory Am;ngemeuts
&

On June 12 2015, the board of directors {the “Beard”} of Reading International,
ine, Pwe,” “oun® *us,” “Reading” or the “company”) terminated the emnployment
of fames J. Cotter, Jt. as our President and Chief Biecutive Officer, effective
immediately. The Company currently intends to' engage the assistance of &
teading executive search firm to identify a permanient President and Chisf
Exectitive Officer; which will consider bothy internal and external candidates.

On June 12, 2015, aur Board appointed Eilen Marie Cotter, 49, Chairperson of the
Board and the Chief Dperating Officer of dur Domestic Cinemas Division, to serve
asour interim President and Chief Executive Officer: Mo new compensatory
srrahgements were entered intoiith Ms, Cottér inconnection with hir

‘appuintment as interim President and Chisf Execitive Officer.,

Efien Cotter hias been a mémber of the Boand since March 7, 2013.and on
August 7, 2014 was appoinited as its Chairpertan, Priorio joining our ompany in

1998, Ms. Cotter spent four years in private pracﬁce a8 4 comporate atthmey with

the law firm of White & Case In Manhattan. Sheisa graduate of Smith College
and holds 3 Juss Doctorate froim Georgetown LawSchool. Ms, t:o::ar is the sister

of James 1 Cotter, e and Margaret Cotten

Under Mr. Coter, ir's smployment agreament with the company, he is entitfed to
the compensation and benefits he was receiving at the fime of 3 termination
without tause for & period of twelve months from notice of termiination. Atthe
time of tarmination, Mr. Cotter jr’s annual salaty was 5335000,

Under his-eimployment dgreement, Mr. Cotier, Jn, is required to tender his
resignation asa director of sur company immadiately upon the termination-of his:
employment. After a réquest to.do o, Mr. Cotter, Jt. Has Gt yet tendered his
resignation. The company considers such refusal as a materfal breach of Mr.
Colter, Is employment agreement, and Fias givan him thirty {(30) days in which

ta resige. 1f hie does not do se, the company will terminate furthier severance
payments, as perroitted onder the employment agreement

No-new compensatory arrangements were enterad into with Mr: Cotter; Ir. in
chRnettion with his termination,

ITEM 8.01 OTRER EYENTS

On June 12, 2015, MY, Cotter, Jr. fled 3 lawstit Against us anid each of vur other
directors jpthe Ristrict Court of the State of Nevada for Clark Courity, titled
lames ). Cotter, Jr., md‘widua!ly and derivatively on behalf of Reading
tnternational, Inc. vs. Margaret Cotter, et. st. The lawsuit alfeges, among other
allegations, that the other directors breached their fiduclary duties in taking the
actions to terminate M. Cotter, J¢: as President and Chief Execitive Officer of the
company and that
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Margaret Cotter and Ellen Cotter aided and abeited the breach of such fiduciary
duties of the other directors. The lawsuit seeks damages and offwr relief
including an injinctive order restralning and erjoining the defendants from
taklrg further action to effectuate or implement the Yermination of Mi Cotter, Ir.
25 Prosident and Chief Executive Officer of the.company and ¥ determination that
Mt Coltay, I’ termination as President and Chief Executive Officer is iegally
iheffectual and of nu forcs or effect. The comprany believes that numerous of the
factual allegations included in the complaint are Inaccurate and utrus and
inégrids to vigorousiy defend againg the claims in this agtion, The company has
heen informed that the other divectors intend to seek indenwification from the
Company for any lissses arising under the lawsuit, i whith ease the company wiff
tender 3 chim under its director and officers Hability insursnce policy.
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Reading Intemational Announces Appﬁintment of Ellen
Cotter as Ynterim Chief Executive Officer

Los Angeles, Californta, (Business Wive] June 15; 2015 - Reading International,
Ihe, [INASDACLRU) atinounted teday that iy Board of Birectors has appointed
Blien M. Cotber as interim President and Chief Exacutive Officer, succeeding
james 1. Cotter v, The Company currently intends to engage the assistance of 4
Jesding executive search fit to identify a permanent President and Chief
Executive Officer, which will consider both internal and external candidates.

Ms. Cofter s the Chalrmyan of the Board of Direstors of the Compabny aivd has

served as the tenior operating officer of the Company's US cinemas operations

for thix past 14 years, in addition, Ms. Cottr is a significant stockhelder in the
LCompany,

Ms. Cotter commented, “laves Cottey, $r, whi served as our Company's
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for over 20 vears, grew Reading
interaational, inc. to a major international developer ard operator of mumptm(
chvernas, lvi theaters and other cormersial real estate assets ook forward to
continiuing hig vision aod comadinient to these businesses as we roove forwaed
1y conduct pur search for our next Chisf Executive Officer. will work difigentiy to
snsure that this transition is seamiess to ali of our stakehoiders.”

The Company plans t report ity second quarter financial results on or biefore
August 10, 2015,

Bboyt Elien Cotter

Eflen M. Coftér has been a member of our Compuany’s Board of Direttors sinee
March 3013, and in August 2014 was appointed as Chairman of the Board, She
foined Reading fnternational, Iné. Uit 1998 and birings bo the pasition her 17 years
of experience working in our Company's cinema operations, ‘both in the Ynited

States anid Sustalia, Forthe past 14 yaars, she hasservied 3% tha seninr dparating
officer of our Company's demestic cinema operations, M, Cotter is argraduste of

Smith Callege any holds & luris Doctorate from Geargetown Lyw School, Prior 1o
joining our Compariy, Ms. Cattér wass o corgoiate attorpey with the law firfn of
White & Case in New York; New York.

About Reading intermatinast. ine.
Reading Internstional (hitp:/ferww.readingrif.com} is in the business of mwring
atrd opetating cirermas and developing, owning and operating resl estate asssls.
Our busihess tonslsts primarily of:

=the daveloprrent, swnership and op@.ratmn of muftiplex cinemas inn the
Hyited States, Australia and Nevw Zealand; and

=the development, dwinership, and aperation of retail and commercial reat
estate in Australia, New 2aniand, snd the United States, intludin
aritertainment-themed retail centers ("ETRC") in Auistralia snd New Zeatand
and live theatier assets in Mankatta and Chicago in the Urilted State:z.

Reading managas its worldwide business under various different brands:
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Exhibit 9.1

i the Linited States, unGnrthe '
1 Reating brond (hitp://wewereadingoinermsuscoml ,
o Argebica Fifits Center brand (httpi//www.angaliafimeantencomy;
o Consolliiatad Theatres brand (httpi/lwconsolidatedthuatres,comis
o City Cinemas brang (h,tg::{lwwsg.ﬂtycénemaamrﬁ};
o Beekman Theatee brand {hitpy/fwwabeekmatithaatra.coml
o Thie Paris Theatre brand {htp//eswtheparistheatpd.comly
o (iberty Thestss brand (hitps//libecytheatresusa.com/}; and
& Villags B3t Cinemsa brand (hitpif/villagseastcinemacom}

=i Australla, ander the ,
o Ruadiog brand thitp:/fwwereadingtihamas.com.ad); and
o Newsarket biwd {http/ frendingrsiwmarket.com. au) )
o Red Yarl Emtertaforment Contre (hitp/Avww.sedyard.comai]

«in Now-Ssataod, under the
o Reading brand {nﬁ}::ﬁfwwsgmgimgememaa,mnz}:
o Rialte brseid (MYpr/fwewnialipeon); :
« Readlog Proparties lraod {hitpy/freadivgpropenties coal
o Courtenay Contral beind {tipy hvwwesndingcourtenay.conel
 Stear of Beer rostavrand brend {hitpiteernbeench.nzl

Media Contarty
Anddroaf Matytevrekl
Faby 2133352240
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR.
individually and derivatively
on behalf of Reading
International, Inc.,

Plaintiff,
va.

}

}

}

)

)

);

)

)

‘ )
MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN )
COTTER, GUY ADAMS, EDWARD )
KANE, DOUGLAS WILLIAM GOULD, )
and DOES 1 through 100, )
incluaive, )
)

)]

}

)

)

)

)

Defendants.

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF ELLEN COTTER
New York, New York

Thursday, June 16, 2016

Reported byt
MICHELLE COX
JOH NO. 316936

Index No. A-15~179860-B
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MR. TAYBACK: Objection. Asked and Fage 175
answered.
¥, No.
Q So whan you use the same phraseolagy

status to refer to the president and CEO in
Item 1 as you use to refer to Craig Tomkins. and
Robert Smerling in Item 6, and yourself amnd
Margaret Cotter in Ttem 7, were yoﬁ attempting
to ¢bscure or conceal the fact that Ttem 1 was
actually about terminating Jim Cotter as
president and CEO?

MR. TAYBACK: Objection; argumentative,
compound.

You can answer.
A I mean, there was no intention on my part
to deceive anybody.
Q Well, in point of fack, prior to
distributing Exhibit 338, you already lad had’
discussions with Ed Kane, Guy’Aﬂams,

Doug McEachern and Margaret Cotter about

‘terminating Jim Cetter, Jr. as president and

CEO, correct?
A Prior to this meeting we did have
discussions about whether Jim would remain as

the CEO and president.

Litigation Services | 1.B00.330.1112
www.litigationservices.com
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' : o Page 176
0 Well, you had discussions with each of --

Guy Adams, Ed Kane, Doug McEachern and
Margaret Cottexr about terminating Jim Cotter,
Jr. as CEO prior to distributing Exhibit 338 on
May 19th, correct? '

MR. TAYBACK: Objection. Asked and

answered.
A Yes.
Q ' You had no such discussiens with

Tim Storey, correct?

A I did have discussions with Tim Storey.

[+] What discussions did you have with

Tim Storey and when did you have them?

A I had had discussions with Tim Storey
about Jim and his‘performance. '

Q Okay. The question is: What discussions
did you have with Tim Storey, if any, prior to
distributing Exhibit 338 on May 1%, 2015, about
terminating Jim Cotter, Jr. as president and
CEO?

A I don't remember the specific discussion
that I had with Tim.

Q Did you have any conversation with

Tim Storey prior to distributing Exhibit 338 on
May 19, 2015, in which the subject of

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
’ www.litigationservices.com
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CERTIFICATE .
STATE OF NEW YORK }
188

COUNTY OF WEW YORK )

I, MICHELLE COX, a Notary Public within
and for the State of New York, do hereby
certify:

That ELLEN COT7ER, the witness whose
deposition is hereinbefore set foxth, was duly
sworn by me and that such deposition is z true
record of thé testimony given by the witness.

I further certify that I am not related to
any of the parties to this action by blood or
marriage, and that I am in no way interested in
the outcome of this matter. . "

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand this 29th day of June 2016.

MICHELLE COX, CLK

Litigation Services ' | 1.800.330.1112
wwiw.litigationservices.com
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BIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR.,
derivatively on behalf of
Reading Internatiomnal, Inc.,

Plaintiff,
VE.

MARGARET COTTER, BLLEN
COTTER, GUY ADAMS, EDWARD
KANE, DOUGLAS McEACHERN,
TIMOTHY STOREY, WILLIAM
GOULD, and DOES 1 through
100, inclusive,

Lefendants,
and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
a Nevada corporation,

NMominal Defendant.

Complete caption, next page.

et et bt S S ht B VP Mt Mt T i Tt st st Tt Nt N Nl Nt N e et

Case No.
A-15-719860-B

Case MNo.
P-14-082942-F

Related and
Coordinated Cases

YIDEQTARED DEPOSITION OF GUY ADAMS

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

THURSDAY, APRIL 28,

VOLUME I

JOB NUMBER: 305144

REPORTED BY: LORI RAYE, CSR NO.

201e

1052
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Page 98
time?

A. 1 strongly suspected she had speken with
Ed Kane.

Q. And had sither you or Ed EKane spoken ito
Doug McEachern about that?

A. I haven't, no. I don't know if Ed did.

Q. Okay. When was the first time you spoke
with Doug McEachern about either terminating Jim
Junior as CEO or sbout a subject of -— the subject
of an interim CEO?

A. That I talked to McEachern? I would say
it was maybe —— again, I can only approximately
guess. Maybe two weeks before the meeting.

Q. And you're referring to the May 18th —-
May 21st meeting, ik was, wasn't ite?

A. Yes. I don't know the exact date, but
yeah.

Q. So what else did Ellen say and what alse
did you say during this approximate hour-plus
breakfast meeting?

A. My recollection, we talked about Jim
Junior and the CEOQ position, and Ellen, I guess,
talked to other people because she was feeling that
there was support for Jim Junior to be removed.

Q. What did she say that caused you to

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
www,litigationservices.com
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conclude she had talked to other people about Ji
Junior being remeoved?

A. I don't know specifically what she said.
Maybe it was innuendos that she maybe talked to
McEachern, maybe. But it wasn't specific.

Q. Did you ever learn after the fact whether
that was the case?

‘ A. Considering McEachern, when I did call
him, like two weéks before the vote, he said he was
on board with that. I suspect she called and
talked tc him. I sure didn't. 5o I suspect -—— I
suspecf she did or maybe Ed Kane did. I don't
know.

o. wWhat else, if anything, did you discuss
with Ellen Cotter at the breakfast meeting at the
Peninsula in April?

A Nothing further that I can remember at
this time. '

Q. What, if anything, did she say about why
she wanted Jim Junior removed as CEO?

'A. I think she felt he wasn't doing an
adequate job as CEO.

‘Q; Excuse me. My giestion is, what did she
say?

A. What did she say about -~ I'm sorry.

Page 99
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA . )
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES §SS.

I, Lori Raye, & duly commissioned and
iicensed court reporter for the State of
California, do hereby certify:

That I reported the taking of the deposition
of the witness, GUY ADAMS; commencing on Thursday,
Apri} 28,2016, at 10:13 a.m.:

That priocr to being examined, the witness was,
by me, placed under cath to testify to the truth;
that said depositioﬁ was taken down by me
stenographically and thereafter transcribed; |
that said deposition is a complete, true and
accurate transcription of said stenographic notes.

I further certify thét I am not a relative or
an employee of any party to said action, nor in
anyﬁise interested in the outcome thereof; that a
request has béen made to review the transcript.

In witness whereof, I have hereunto

subscribed my name this 2nd) day of May 2016.

TORI RAYE
CSR No. 7052

" Page 240
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUHWTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., }
individually and )
derivatively on beshalf of)
Reading International,
Inc.,

Case No. A-15-719860-B
Plaintiff,
Coordinated with:
vs.
Case No. P-14-082842-E
MARGARET COTTER, et al.,

Pefendants.
and

READING INTERNATIONAL,
INC., a Nevada
corporation,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)

Nominal Defendant

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF WILLIAM GOULD
TAKEN ON JUNE 8, 2016

VOLUME 1

JOB NUMBER 315485
REPORTED BY:

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400
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other hand, right?

A. Correct.

¢. And then somehody moved and seconded the
motion to termminate Jim Cotter, Jr.; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. And then a vote was had, and as among
the non—Cotter directors, each of Messrzs. Kane and
Adams and McEachern voted t«l: terminate?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you and Mr, Gould voted against?

A. Yes.

Q. And did Ellen and Margaret Cotter vote
oz did they recuse themgelves? |

A, I don't remember.

Q. And do you recall that at that meeting
Ellen Cotter stated that it was -- Jim was required
by the terms of his exacutive employment agreement
to resign as a director if he were terminated as an
officer?

A. .At that - meeting I — I'm not sure I
remembex at that meeting, but I do remember that
very well,

¢. And what did you say in response?

a. I said I didn't believe he was obliga’ged

- ) ' Page 244
_ Margaret on one hand and Jim Cotter, Jr., on the

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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to resign as a director.

0. 2And what was your explanation for that,
if any?

A. Well, I drafted the -- I drafted the
contract with -- with Jim. BAnd it did say in there
he would resign. But what we intended that to mean
was his position as president.

He had been on this board for many
years. I mean it had no bearing at all, in my
opinion, on his requirement that he resign as a
director.

Q. Did you communicate that wview te -- you
copmunicated that view at a di;ectors neeting?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ever communicate that view to
Akin Gump lawyers?

A, Yes.

Q. Was that before or after Ellen Cotter on
or about June 15 sent a letter to Jim Cotter, Jr.,
demanding his resignation as a director?

MR. HELPERN: Objection. Form, lacks
foundation, assumes facts.

MR. SWANIS: Join.

THE WITNESS: Well, I want the —— I wgnt

to just correct one thing.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices,com
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I may have ~- I may have been too glossy
on this one point. T communicated to Akin Gump, bhut
not directly. I think it was through Ellen and
Craig. They asked my opinion. And I told them what
it was, that he was not obligated, in my opinion, to
fesign as a director.

BY MR. KRUM:
Q. Okay. Thanks. '
And my question is --
A. Yes.
Q. -- when did that happen?
a. Shortly after the termination.
Q. .Wbs it the same day?
A. I don't remember.
Q. Was it the following Monday?
a. I can't recall the exact day it was.
Q. Was it in person or by telephone?
A. - I don't remember.

MR, KRUM: OKay. We're about out of
tape, so why don't we adjourn for the day.

MR, RHOW: Thank you. '

MR. KRUM: ‘Thank you for your time.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

VIDEOTAPE OPERATOR: This concludes the

deposition of William Gould, volume one, June 8B,

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices, com
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

1
2
3 I, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
4
5 That I am a duly gualified Certified
6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,
7  holder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full
8 force and effect, and that I am authorized to
.9  administer oaths andlaffirmations;
10
11 That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12 the herein named witness, to wit, WILLIAM GOULD, was
13  taken before me at the time and place herein set
14  forth; '
15
16 That prior to being examined, WILLIAM
17 GOULD was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the
1B txuth, the whole truth, and nothing but the trumth;
15
20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21  objections made at the time of examination were
22  recorded stenographically by me and were thereaftex
23  transcribed by me or under my direction and
24  supervision;
25
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com
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That the foregeing pages contain a full,

true and accurate record of the proceedings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;
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Attorneys for Plaintiff
James J. Cotter, Jr.

MEmm@ERRC.com
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., individually and
derivatively on behalf of Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,
V.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, and
DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Nevada
corporation;

Nominal Defendant.

TZ PARTNERS MANAGEMENT, LP, a

Delaware limited partnership, doing business as
KASE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, et al.,

Plainfiffs,
¥s.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, CRAIG
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DECLARATION OF PLAINTIFE
JAMES J. COTTER, JR. IN
OPPOSITION TO ALL INDIVIDUAL
DEFENDANTS' MOTIONS FOR
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT
(AND GOULD JOINDERS)

[Business Court Bequested: [EDCR 1.61}

[Exempt From Arbitrafion: declaratory
relief requested; action in equity]

JA4314




=T A - TV, TR - TSR o B

T
S s W N = O

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600

Las Vegas, NV 89169-5986

_
288 = 3

ROTHEERDER LHURISTIE
2
S

iewis Roca

™I NN N

Defendants.

and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC,, 2
Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant.

1, James J. Cotter, Jr. hereby declare, under the penalty of perjury and the laws of Nevada,
as follows:

I.  lamover cighteen (18) years of age. I have personal knowledge of the facts
contained in this declaration, except on those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to
those matters, I believe them to be true. If called upon to testify as to the contents of this
declaration, ] am legally competent to do so in a court of law.

2. 1am the Plaintiff in the above-captioned action. 1am, and at afl times relevapt
hereto was, a sharcholder of RDL I have been a director of RDJ since on or about March 21, 2002,
Ihave been involved in RDI management since mid-2005, I was appointed Vice Chairman of the
RDI1 board of directors in 2007 and President of RDI on or about June 1, 2013. T-was appointed
CEQ by the RDI Board on or about August 7, 2014, immediately after James J. Cotter, St. (JIC,
Sr.) resigned from that position. 1am the son of the late JIC, Sr., and the brother of defendants
Margaret Cotter ("MC”) and Ellen Cotter (“EC”). I presently own approximately 560,186 shares
of RDI Class A non-voting stock and options to acquire another 50,000 shares of RDI Class A
non-voting stock. I am also the co-trustee and beneficiary of the James J. Cotter Living Trust,
dated August 1, 2000, as amended (the "Trust"), which owns 2,115,539 shares of RDI Class A
{(non-voting) stock and 1,123,888 shares of RDI Class B (&oting) stock. The Trust became
irrevocable upon the passing of JIC, St. on September 13, 2014.

3, I submit this declaration in support of the oppositions to all of the motions for
summary judgment filed by one or more of the individual defendants in this action.

4, Nominal defendant Reading International, Inc. (RDI or Company) is a Nevada

corporation and is, according to its public filings with the United States Secunities and Exchange

20116777791 2
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Commission (the "SEC"), an intemationally diversified company principally focused on the
development, ownership and operation of entertainment and real estate assets in the United States,
Australia and New Zealand. The Company operates in two business segments, namely, ¢inema
exhibition, through approximately 58 multiplex cinemas, and real estate, including real estate
development and the rental of retail, commercial and live theater assets, The Company manages
world-wide cinemas in the United States, Australia and New Zealand, RDI has two classes of
stock, Class A stock held by the investing public, which stock exercises no voting rights, and
Class B stock, which is the sole véting stock with respect to the election of directors. An
overwhelming majority (approximately eighty percent (80%)) of the Class A stock is legally
and/or beneficially owned by shareholders unrelated to me, EC or MC. Approximately seventy
percent (70%) of the Class B stock is subject to disputes and pending trust and estate litigation in
California between EC and MC, on the one hand, 2nd me, on the other hand, and a probate action
in Nevada. Of the Class B stock, approximmately forty-four percent (44%) is beld in the name of the
Trust. RDI is named only as a nominal defendant in this derivative action.

5. 1signed a verification of a Second Amended Verified Complaint (the “SAC”} in
this action. I stand by the substantive allegations of the SAC and incorporate them herein by
reference. A
The Position of CEO at RDI

6. Certain of the motions for summary judgment brought by the individual defendants
in this action suggest that T was appointed CEO of RDI in August 2014 after what amounted to no
deliberation by the Board of Directors. That is absolutely false. In fact, as early as 2006, James J
Cotter, St. (“JIC, 51.), then the CEO and controlling sharcholder of RDI, had commumicated to
the RDI board of directors his prcpdsed succession plan for the positions of President and CEO.
That plan was for me to work under the direction of JJC, Sr. to learn the businesses of RDI,
including by functioning in a senior executive role,

7. Since 20053, 1 was invalved in most RDI exccutive management ineetings and
»privy to most significant internal senior management memos, As mentioned above, I was

appointed Vice Chairman of the RDI board in 2007. The RDI Board appointed me President of

2011077779_1 3
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RDJ on or about June 1, 2013, and I filled those responsibilities without objection by the RD1
board of directors.

8. Soon after I became CEO, my sisters, Ellen, who was an executive at RDI in the
domestic cinema segment of the Company’s business, and Margaret, who managed RDI's limited
live theater operations as a third-party consultant, both communicated to me and to members of
the RDI Board of Directors that they did not want to report to me as CEO. In fact, neither of them
previously while working for or with the Company effectively had ever reported to anyone other
than our father, JJC, Sr. Margaret in particular resisted and effectively refused to report to me until
she no longer needed to do so, following my (purported) termination as President and CEQ of the
Company. They also co-opted at least one employee, Linda Pham, who claimed at some point in
2014 that I bad created a hostile work environment for her, which accusation was not well-taken
and, in any event, moot with the passage of time by Spring 2015, as director Kane acknowledged
at the time,

Disputes With My Sisters

9. My sisters and 1 had certain disputes with respect to matters of our father's estate.
The most significant and contentious dispute concerned who would be the trustee or trustees of the
voting trust that, following our father’s death, holds approximately 70% of the voting stock of
RDL According to a 2013 amendment to his trust documentation, Margaret was to be the sole
trustee. Pursnant to a 2014 amendment to his trast docomentation, Margaret and I were to serve

‘contemporaneously as co-trustees. In early February 2015, Ellen and Margaret commenced a
lawsnit in California state court challenging the validity of the 2014 amendment to our father’s
trust documents (the “California Trust Action”).

10. My sisters and I also had certain disputes with respect to RDL Most generally, they
disagreed with my view and approach of running RDI like a public company, including biring a
senior executive qualified to oversee the development of the Company’s valuable real estate and, |
more fundamentally, operating the Company to increase its value for all shareholders, not just its

value to the Cotter family as controlling sharcholders.

2011077779 1 4
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Threatened Termination and Termination

11.  Late in the day on May 19, 2015, 1 received from Ellen, as the chairperson of the
RDIY Boar.d of Ditectors, an agenda for a supposed special meeting of the RDI board on May 21,
2015, two days later. 1 learned that the benignly described first item on the agenda, “status of
president aud CEO,” apparently referred to a secret plan of Ellen and Margaret, together with Ed
Kane, Guy Adams and Doug McEachern, to vote to remove me as President and CEO of RDIL
However, that meeting commenced and concluded without the threatened vote being taken.

12. Next, on or about May 27, 2015, the lawyer representing Ellen and Margaret in the
Californta Trust Action transmitted to my lawyer in that action a document that proposed to
resolve the disputes between my sisters and me, including with respect to who wonld .be the
trustee of the voting trust and whether Margaret and Ellen would report to me as CEO of RDL (A
true and correct copy of the May 27, 2015 document, which was marked as deposition exhibit 322,
is attached hereto as exbibit “A.”) |

13.  On Friday, May 29, 2015, the (supposed) special board meeting of May 21 was to
resume. That morning, before the meeting, T met with Ellen and Margaret. At that meeting, they| -
told me that they were unwilling to mediate or to negotiate any of the terms of the May 27
document described above. They also told me that if I did not agree to resolve my disputes with
them on the terms set out in that document, that the RDI Board of Directors would vote at the
(supposed) meéting that day to terminate me as President and CEO.

14.  ‘'The (supposed) special board meeting commenced on May 29 and the issue of my
termination as President and CEQ was the subject. At this (supposed) special meeting, or another,
McEachermn pressured me to resign 23 President and CEOQ. Eventually, the non-Cotter m_embers of
the RDI Board of Directors met with my sisters separately from me. Following that, the majority
of the non-cotter directors, namely, Messts. Adams, Kane and McEachern, advised me that the
meeting would adjourn temporarily and resume telephonically at 6 p.m. They further advised that,
if T had not reached a tesolution of disputes between me and my sisters by the time the (supposed)

special meeting reconvened telephonically at 6 p.m. that day, they would proceed with the vote to

2011077719_1 ' 5
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terminate me, meaning that the thres of them wonld vote to terminate me as President and CEQ of
RDI

15.  That afternoon, Ellen and Margaret again refused to mediate and again refused to
negotiate, Ultimately, I indicated a willingness to resolve disputes based on the document
. provided, subject to conferring with counsel. At or about 6 p.m., the (supposed) special RDI board
meeting resumed tslephonic;;xlly, at which time Ellen reported to the five non-Cofter directors that
we had reached an agreement in principle to resolve our disputes, subject to conferring with
respective counsel, Bd Kane congratulated us and made a statement to the effect that he hoped that
1 was CEQ of the Company for 30 years, No vote was taken on my termination.

16,  Om or about June 8, 2015, I communicated to my sisters that T could not agree to
the document their lawyer had transmitted to my lawyer on or about June 2, 2015. Ellen called a
(supposed) special board meeting for June 12, 2015, at which meeting each of Messrs. Adams,
Kene and McEachern made good on their threat {0 vote to texminate me and did so.
Director Xnterest and Independence

17. QOne or more of the defendants’ motions for summary judgmont claim that SEC
filings by RDI describe the non-Cofter directors as “independent,” that I signed one or more of
those SEC filings and that I therefore admit that those directors are independent for the purposes
of this actioﬁ. That is inaccurate, The term “independent” as used in RDI’s SEC filings do not
refer to matters of Nevada law. It referred usually to the fact that, pursuant to the terms of the
Company’s listing agreement with NASDAQ, the stock exchange on which RDI stock trades,
directors mect the standard of independence of NASDAQ. None of the director defendants have
ever suggested to me that they understood use of the term “independent” in RDI's SEC filings to
communicate anything other than that non—Cotter directors were not members of the Cotter family
which, in one manner or another, controlled approximately. 70% of the votiilg stock of RDL As
among members of the RDI Board of Directors, the term *independent” was used historically to
refer to directors who were not members of the Cotter family.

18. BEd Kane was a life-long friend of nlny father, having met when they were graduate

students. Kane was in my father’s wedding and was a speaker at my father’s funeral. Over my

2011077779_1 6
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Iengthy tenure as a dircctor at RDI, I observed Kane as a director of RDI acting at all times as if]
his job as a director was to carry out my father’s wishes, Kane admitted to me that he was not
independent for purposes other than the NASDAQ listing agreement and suggested after I became
CEO that the Company would benefit from independent directors knowledgeable about its two
principal businesses, cinemas and real estate.

19. On the contentious issue between me and my sisters regarding who would be the
trustee(s) of the voting trust, Kane communicated to me that his view was that it was my fathers’
wishes that Margaret alone be the trustee, and he pressured me to agree to that, At one point in the
context of discussions regarding termivating me as President and CEO of RDI, Kane said to me
angrily that he thought I “f*#*ed Margaret” by the 2014 amendment to my father’s trust
documentation, which amendment made me a co-trustee with Margaret of the voting trust.

20.  Kane remains very close with my sisters, who still call him “Uncle Ed™ (which 1
ceased doing after joining RDI). They contime to get together socially, including for family meals
during holiday periods, which is what they admittedly did around the Christmas holidays in 2015.

21.  Guy Adams is a long time fifend of my father. After Adams effectively became
unemployed, my father attempted to provide him work and income. Eventually, my father through
a company he wholly-owned catered into an agteement with Adams to pay Adams $1000 per
month, That company now is part of my father’s estate, of which my sisters are executors, such
that they are in a position to control whether Adams is paid that money or not, Adams also has
carried interests in certain real estate in which my father invested, My sisters as executors of my

father’s estate are in position to see to it that Adams is or is not paid any monies he is owed on

22 “ account of those carried interests.

22, Prior to on or about May 2015, Adam’s financial condition and, more particularly,
his dependence on or independence from my sisters, in terms of his financial situation, bad not
arisen as a subject. When I suspected that Adams bad agreed with my sisters to vote to terminate
e as President and CEO of R, that raised the issue of whether he was financially dependent on
them. 1 now kuow that he is, T leamed from Adams’ swom declarations in his California state

court divorce case that almost all of his income comes from RDI and from one or more companies
20110777791 7
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that my sisters control. Adams is not independently wealthy. T asked him about his financial
dependence or independence at the (supposed) May 21, 2015 special board meeting, at which time
he refused to answer.

23.  Michael Wrotniak’s wife Trisha was Margaret’s roommate in her freshman year of
college at Georgetown University. Margaret and Trisha have been life-long best friends starting
with their first year in college together. Michael also went to Georgetown University where he
met his wife Trisha and also developed a very close friendship with Margaret in college. Given
that Margaret only has a fow friends, her relationship with Trisha and Michael is extremely
important. Margaret has spent a Jot of time with Michael and his wife over the years, as all three
live in metropolitan New York City. Margaret became like an aunt to Trisha and Michael’s
children. My sister Ellen and mother also know Trisba and Michael very well, and they have all
attended social events together in New York, such as birthday and cocktail parties my sister
Margaret has hosted at her apartment in New York City. 1believe Margaret’s oldest child refers to
' Trisha and Michae] as Aunt and Uncle. Michael’s communication with me as a director has been
very guarded, which 1 inderstand to reflect his knowledge of the lawsuit and his close relationship
with Margaret,

24,  Judy Codding has had a very close personal relationship with my mother for more
than thirty years. (Ellen lives with our mother, who has chosen my sisters’ side in the disputes
between us.) Ms. Codding bas become close with my sisters Ellen and Margaret. On October 13,
2015, over breakfast 1 had with her, she expressed to me that RDI is a family business and that the
only people who should manage it should be one of the Cotters and that she would help make sure
of that, whether .it be Ellen or me, Her reaction to the offer to purchase all of the stock of the
Company at a price in excess of what it trades in the market (the “Offer”), first made by
comespondence dated on or about May 31, 2015, reflected Ms. Codding’s unwavering loyalty to
Ellen. Before the board meeting at which the Board was going to discuss the Offer, she indicated
to me that there was no way that the Offer should even be considered (clearly having spoken to

Ellen about it before the board meeting).

2011077719_1 8
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25.  Bill Gould was a professional acquaintance and friendly with my father for years.

Repeatedly since my termination as President and CEO, he has said to me that he has acquiesced
as an RDI director fo condnct to which he objects and/or to conclusions with which he disagrees,
stating in words or substance that he must “pick his fights.”
- 2.  For example, at a board meeting at which the board was asked to approve minutes
from the (supposed) special board meetings of May 21 and 29, 2015 in June 12, 2015, at which I
objected because the minutes contained significant factual inaccuracies, at which 1 voted against
approving the minutes and at which Tim Storey abstained, reflecting that he that too thought the
minutes inaccurate (as he testi_ﬁcd unequivoeally in deposition in this case), Bill Gould voted to
approve the minutes. When 1 asked him afterwards why he had voted to approve inaccurate
minutes, he said that, although he could not remember the meetings well enough to state that the
minutes were accurate, he thought the ultimate descriptions of action taken, meaning the
termination of me, the appointment of Ellen as interim CEQ and the repopulation of the executive
committee, were accutate, and that he did not want to fight about them. |

27, Also as an example, Bill Gould admitted to me that he thought the process
deficient, and the time inadequate, to make a genuinely informed decision about whether to add
Judy Codding to the RDI Board-of Directors. At the board meeting when that happened, he
described the decision to add her as a director as having been “slammed down,” but he acquiesced.

28.  Itis clear to me that Bill Gould effectively has given up trying to do what he thinks |
is the proper thing to do as an RDI director, and is and since June 2015 has been in “go along, get
along” mode. He first failed to cause any proper process to ocour regarding my fermination, and
allowed the ombudsman process (by which then director Tim Storey as the representative of the
non-Cotter directors was working with me and my sisters to enable us to work together as
professionals, which process was to continue into June 2015) to be aborted, That, together with the
forced “retirement” of Tim Storsy, apparently so chastened Bill Gould that he became unwilling to
take a stand on ény matter in which doing so would place him in disagreement with my msters For

example, he bas acknowledged that Margaret lacks the experience and qualifications to hold the

20110777791 9
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kighly compensated job she mow holds at RDI, but Bill Gould did not object to it or the
compensation being given to ber.
The Executive Comntittee

29. My sisters first proposed an executive commitice as a means to avoid reporting to
e or, as a practical matter, to anyone, in the Fall of 2014. T resisted that executive committes
construct, which was not implemented at that time. As part of the resolution of our disputes that
they attempted to force me to accept in May and June 2015, described above, they included an
exceutive committee construct that would have had them reporting to the exeeutive committee that
they, together with Guy Adams who is financially beholden to them, would control. As part of|
their seizure of control of RDY, in addition to terminating me as President and CEO, they activated
and repopulated RDI's Board of Directors executive committee. That executive committee
previously had never met and never made a decision. After it was activated and repopulated on
June 12, 2013, it was nsed as a means to exclude me and then director Tim Storey, and to & lesser
extent Bill Gould, from funciioning as directors of RDI.and, in some instances, even baving
knowlc;ige of matters that were handled by the executive committee that historically and
ordinarily were handled by RDI’s Board of Directors.

The Suppesed CEQ Search ‘

30.  When RDI filed a Form 8-K with the SEC and issued a press release announcing
the termination of me as President and CEQ, RDI also announced that it wounld engage a search
firm to conduct the search for a new President and CEOQ. The board empowered Ellen to select the
search firm. Ellen selected Kom Ferry (“KF”). She explained to the RDI Board of Directors the
she selected KF because KF offered a proprietary assessment tool, which would be used to assess
the three finalists for the position of President and CEO, which assessment she asserted would
“de-tisk” the search process. The Board agreed. Ellen also told the Board that the three final
candidates would be presentea to the Board for interviews. The Board agreed. Ellen selected
herself, Margaret, Bill Gould and Dong McEachern to be mcmbers_ of the CEO search committee,

which the Board accepted without substantive discussion.

2011077779 1 10

JA4323



(=S - RS G - T " T R

[ T o~ T R
[+ N ¥ TR - 7S B S R~

3993 Howard Hughes Plavy, Suite 600

Las Vegas, NV 89169-5096

M yt ek
S B = 9

RUTHEERSENR CHBIENE
™
S

{.ewis Roca
N R B REBRBS

N
o0

31, -After the CEO search committee was put in place and KF engaged, the full board
received effectively no information about whether and how the CEO search was proceeding. In the
time frame from August throngh December 2015, Ellen for the CEO search committee provided
approximately two reports, the latter of which was in mid-December which, as it turned out, was
after the process had been aborted and Ellen selected, at Jeast preliminarily. Tim Storey objected
to the full board not being apprised of the status of the CEO search, prior to his forced
“retirement.”

32.  Ultimately, in early January 2016, the CEO search commitiee presented Ellen as
their choice for President and CEQ. They did not offer, much less present, three finalists to the
Board for interviews. They did not have KF perfqrm its pald for, proprietary assessment of the
finalists, or of anyone, Before that Board meeting, at which Ellen was made President and CEO,
the material provided to the Board effectively amounted to a memorandum prepared by Craig
Tompkins, which memorandum claimed to summarize the reasons for the CEQ search committee
selecting Ellen. The stated reasons are reasons thay no outside candidate could have met. The
stated reasons are reasons that do not approximate, much less match, the criteria that the CEQ
search commiftee created and KF memorialized as the criteria to identify candidates and
ultimately select a new President and CEQ. The stated reasons for selecting Ellen were, as I heard
them explained at the January board meeting, effectively distilled into a single consideration,
namely, that Bllen and Margaret were controlling shareholders, | |

33.  Although I did not agree with the termination of me as President and CEO, and
thought and maintain that it was improper, 1 had hoped that the CEO search committee would
conduet a bona fide search and provide to the board for interview three qualified finalists, as had
been agreed. I now know that ﬁot only did that not happen, but that the CEO search committee
terminated the search, and effectively terminated KF, after meeting with BEllen as a declared
candidate for the positions of Pn;,sidcnt and CEO. Independent of the results of that process, which
at the time I asserted did not serve the interests of the Company, that the process was manipulated

and/or aborted in my view amounts to abdication of the board’s responsibilities.
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Actions to Secure Control and Use It to Pay those Who Have It

34.  Tn April 2015, I learned that Ellen and Margaret had exercised options they held
personally to acquire RDI class B voting stock and that, with the advice and assistance of Craig
Tompkins, a lawyer who was a congultant to the Company, they sought to exercise a supposed
option in my father’s name to acquire 100,000 shares of RDI Class B voting stock. The factual
context for the effort to exercise the supposed 100,000 share option is that a majority of the voting
stock controfled by my father was held in the name of his Trust, of which the three of us were

trustees, Because of that, Ellen and Margaret could not properly vote that stock without my

LYo e < B - T ¥ T - U S N

agreement, The stock that was held—not owned—in my father’s estate, which was contsolled by

—
<

Ellen and Margaret as the executors, approximated the amount of RDI class B voting stock held
by third perties, inchiding Mark Cuban, The point of the effort to exercise the supposed 100,000

et | et
h

share option was to ensure that Ellen and Margaret as executors would have more class B stock

—
w

then third parties, including Mark Cuban.

—
-9

35.  There were a host of issues faced by the Company due to the request of Margaret

[u—
th

and Ellen to exercise these supposed 100,000 share option. For example, one threshold guestion

—
[+

the Comipany would have needed to have answered was whether the option was legally effective.

Las Vegas, NV 89165-5996
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That question was not answered, Another threshold question was whether the supposed 100,000
share option automatically had transferred to my father’s trust upon his death. That also was not

answered, to my knowledge. Possibly due to such unamswered questions, the compensation

Lo T
O o0

o)
<

committee of the Board did not authorize the exercise of the supposed 100,000 share option in

o+
—

April. Matgaret and Ellen therefore delayed to the 2015 amual shareholders meeting. After the

1 WIS RO 3993 Howard Hughes Pwy, Sulte 500
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22 I executive commitiee (at Ellen’s request) had set the annual sharcholders meeting for November
23 || (meaning that as a board member I had no say on the subject) and the record date for it in October
24 || 2015, Ellen had Kane and Adams as two of three members of the compensation committee
25 (| authorize the request to exercise the supposed 100,000 share option, which was done in September
26 || shortly before a hearing in the Nevada probate case. T understand they did so so that the 100,000
27 || shares supposedly could be registered with the Company in the name of Ellen and Margaret as

28 [ executors prior to the record date. The Company received no benefit from this, in fact suffered the

2011077779 _1 12
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|| health benefits for herself and her two children, in a position in which she would continne to be

injury from replacing outstanding liquid class A stock with effectively illiquid class B stock and, 1
am informed and believe, from covering the tax obligation that belong to the person or entity
exercising the option. ,
Monetary Rewards to Marga::et, Ellen and Adams

36.  In March 2016, the Board approved giving Margaret employment at the Company
as the senior executive in charge of development of the Company’s valuable New York real estate,
That is a position Margaret had sought since my father passed. It is a position that I refused to give
her, with the then support of all of the non-Cotter directors, because she was unqualified to bold it,
She bas no prior real estate dﬂirelopment experience. What was discussed during my tenure as

President and CEO was providing Margaret employment at the Company, so that she conld have

responsible for the modest live theater operations and in which she could work in connection with
any development of the Company’s New York rzal estate, but not as the senior executive
responsible for the development of the Company®s New York real estate. In other words, Margaret
could have a position, but she would not have a position that called upon her to do that which she
had no expetience doing and that which she was unqualified to do. That is the position Margaret
was given in March. It is a highly compensated position that reflects its respomsibilities, But
Margaret has neither the prior experience nor the qualifications tor hold it. Nevertheless, she is paid
as if she does, Which, in my view, amounts to waste of Company monies, Additionally, the
$200,000 paid to Margaret, ostensibly for concessions Margaret previously was willing to make
for freg to become an employee of the Company, and reportedly for prior services rendered which
the Board year after year had not chosen to pay her, is simply a gift, presumably becavse Margaret
made Jess money in 2015 due to the Stomp debacle.

37.  The compensation package provided to Ellen in March 2016, like the one provided
to Margaret, is a departure from the Company’s practices, in terms of the amount paid relative to
the skill and ;fxpcﬁcnce of the person being paid. Ellen now is the CEO of what basically is the
same company of which I was CEO, but she has a compensation package that could pay her twice

to three times as much. No board member has ever explained to me why they think this is

2011077779 1 13
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23
24
25
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27
28

appropriate, cxcept to the extent they have alluded to the fact that they view Ellen and Margaret as
controlling shareholders.

38.  Adams in March 2016 was awarded what amounted to a $50,000 bonus for being a
director. As a director, 1 have not seen him provide extraordinary service that warrants a payment
such as that, which is a material departure from past practices at the Company, in which extra cash
payments to Directors typically were $10,000. The sole notable exception was the $75,000 paid
to Tim Storey for his work as ombudsman, but the amount of fime and effort he put in that role,
including travel between New Zealand and Los Angeles, exceeded by a multiple the amount of
time Adams has devoted to being a director in 2015 and 2016. I have no doubt that Adams was
paid $50,000 for what amounted to exemplary loyalty to Ellen.

The Offer | )

39.  Ellen shared with the full Board, in or about early June, an offer by third parties to
purchase all of the outstanding stock of RDI for cash consideration at a price of approximately
33% above the prices of which RDI stock then traded (i.e., the “Offer”). The Board met on June 2,
2016 regarding the Offer. At that time, Eﬂcn proposed to bave mapagement prepare
documentation regarding the value of the Company to be provided to Board members for their
review and consideration in advance of another board meeting to consider the Offer. I objected,
suggesting that an independent person or company be charged with preparing such documentation
for review by the Board. My objection was noted and overmiled, and the Board agreed to proceed
in the manner Ellen suggested. Additionally, board members inquired what Elllen and Margaret as
controlling shareholders wanted to do in response to the Offer.

40,  On or about June 7, 2016, in view of the Offer, I asked Ellen to provide me the
Company’s business plan. I understood that there was none and her failure to respond confirmed
that,

41,  The Board reconvened on June 23, 2016, regarding the Offer. No materials bad
been delivered to Board members prior to that meefing. At that meeting, Ellen made an oral
presentation regarding the supposed value of the Company, I found it difficult to follow her oral

presentation with no prior or contemporaneous documentation. I cannot itnagine how outside

W11077779 1 14
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directors less familiar with the details of the Company followed it, Not one of the directors other
than Ellen .ind'icated that they hiad taken any action at all, whether reviewing Company
documentation, speaking with experts such as counsel or bankers or doing anything else at all, to
prepare fo discuss the Offer. At that meeting, Ellen also indicated that she and Margaret would
oppose any response other than rejecting the Offer, and added that it was their belief that the
Comipany should :proceéd cm. its course as an indeperident company. No director asked questions
about whether and how the Company could ever actualize the supposed valiie Ellen claimed it had,
None asked guestions about whether management was preparing a business plan to do-so or, for
that matter, simply preparing a long-term or strategic business plan. None exists. Instead, the non-
Cotter directors simply ascertained that Ellen and Margaret wanted to reject the Offer and agreed
that the price offered was inadcquate. They all voted to proceed in the manner Ellen
recommended.
1 declare under penalty of pegjury under the laws of the State of Nevada, that the foregoing

is true and correct,

DATED this «$ #day of October, 2016

}lﬁé 1. Cottet/Jr.

2011677779, 1 15
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S Page 13
In 1987 at the request of James Cotter,

Sr., I became president of Craig Corporation. And I
remained president of Craig Corporation -—— I
can't -- don't know how long that was.

I —— at the same time but later on I
became president of Reading, which was a separate
company before it was merged into Cralg Corporation.

From time to time I had —— I had
resigned —— I must have resigned from Crailg or
Reading at least three or four times.

I took a position — the first time I
resigned 1 was offered a position as c¢hairman and
C.E.0. of an outpatient surgery center company, ASMG
OQutpatient Services. They had three outpatient
centers in San Diego area. BAnd while I was there I
obtained a contract to do the outpatient services in
a hospital in Palm Springs.

At the request of the company I sold
that -—- the shareholders, I sold that to a company
that later became Health South.

I also became a —— tough to describe,
but I was a non-director/director of an 800-person
independent practice association, 800 physicians.

I say "non-director/director" because

since I wasn't a physician,.I couldn't be a director

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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of the company, but I was treated as such and paid

1
2 as such and went to the weekly executive committee
3 meetings and also monthly board meetings of that
4 company. It was c¢alled Sharp Community Medical
5 Group.
3] In 2000 —— god, I can't remember the
7 date. I think it was 2004 Mr. Cotter called me and
8 asked me to come back on the board of what was now
9 Reading. And I did that.
10 I alse dﬁring all this period of time
11 taught tax, various tax courses, at local law
12 schools hers.
13 Starting probably around 1969 I
14 taught -- taught some tax courses at University of
15 San. Diego. And then I taught almost every vear at
16  least one course‘at California Western School of
17 Law, various tax courses, partnership tax, corporate
18 tax, individual income tax. 2And thought about
19 teaching full time, but I didn't.
20 And I also taught -- my most recent
21 teaching position was at Thomas Jefferson School of
22 Law. I taught income tax courses there for two
23 years, And I think the last time was about three or
24 four years ago.
25 Q. Are you done, sir?
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com

JA4336




EDWARD KANE - 05/02/2016

W o a9 e o W

NN NN N N B R R s
M & W ON R S © 0 -3 ;o W N RO

' Page 25
We were too good friends to let that

thing fester too long.

Q. Mr. Kane, does the name "Citadel” mean
anything to you?

A. Oh, sure.

Q. Tell us —--

A, Citadel, that was the hdlding company
for Fidelity Federal Savings and loan.

Q. BAnd did you have positions with Citadel,
Fidelity or both?

A, Yes.

Q. How did that come to pass?

A. Well, Mr. Cotter had bounght stock, and
together -~ I say "together," I shouldn't use that
word. |

But he had been introduced to it by a
fellow named Fred Rovin who had a position in the —-
in the company. And I think he persuaded Mr. Cotter
to have Craig or‘Reading -~ 1 forget who was
involved at the time -~ to take a position in it.

And so it got to the point where
Mr. Cotter was ~- and Mr. Rovin both had éndugh
stock to appoint directors to the board. Mr. Rovin
appointed his brother and a lawyer and Mr., Cotter

got Ralph Perry, who was a lawyer, and myself on the

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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and it became in- -- difficult.

And so the regulators came down and they
suggested that I leave, and I did.

Q. When did you first meet Jim Cotter, Sr.?

A, He was in the master's of tax program
with me in 1963, So I met him in the fall of 1963.

Q. When did you and he become friends?

A. Very shortly thereafter. We found that
we had similar baékgrounds even though we don't -~
didn't have similar religiocns.

But we were both middle class, lower
middle class. We lived in that neighborhood. We
didn't have any money when we went to college or law
school.

And we just —- just became fast friends.

He was the first person I invited to my
house for dinnex.

I was married. I had gotteﬁ married in
the summer of '63. And we started socializing with
he and his, I guess, fiance, Mary Ellen Cotter, went
to the World's Fair with them, because Mary was
working‘for American Airlines, could get us free
tickets.

And then I got the position with Donovan

Leisure. And he joined the —- the IRS as a trial

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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1 And he called me up and said, "The partnexship is
2  over because Bill Foreman has offered me four times
3 what I'm making here t¢ come in."
4 And so I said "Okay."
5 And I left Gray, Cary and joined with
6 these other guys who —— they were from back east and
7 fine lawyers. It was a very small firm. Bulf four
8 of them became Superior Court judges and one of them
9 became a Court of Appeals judge.
10 Q. Let me interject a guestion, Mr. Kane.
11 A, Sure.
12 0. I thought you said something to the
13 effect that he said the partnership was over.
14 To what were you referring there?
15 A. Dur —-— our dream of becoming partners in
.16 a law firm, he and I. That was over.
17 . Q. Okay. I'm sorxy. Please continue.
18 A. Sure. So I joined the fimm as equal
19 partner. ..
20 And I guess I've covered the rest of it
21  except that Jim and I had a very close relationship,
22  even then. And he called me up, and he had a tax
23  problem at Pacific Theatres, a personal tax problem.
24 And he said there are some -~ "We have some theaters
25 up' in the Fresno area and we could —- maybe we
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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Q. Do your children know the three Cotter
children?
A, I —— I think they do, vyes. Yes.

Q. Do any of Ellen Cotter, Margaret Cotter
or Jim Cotter call you Uncle Ed?

A. All of them, including their mother and
their father.

Q. But for the three kids, has that been
how they've addressed you since they were able to
speak?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

TEE WITNESS: I think that's frue. And
they still do except for Mr. Cotter, Jr. He stopped
calling me Uncle Ed when he was terminatedi
BY MR. KRUM:

Q.' In your decision-making with respect to
any or all of the three Cotter children since the
passing of Jim Cotter, Sr., have you attempted to do
what you thought he would have wanted you to do?

' MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague and lacks
foundatiocn.

THE WITNESS: What I do does not take
into account The Cotter children.

I'm a director of this company. And I

do what I think is in the best interest of the

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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issues within the family are

resolved and all litigation pending
or propoged is terminated, there
‘should be noc Cotter incpeases.“

You see that?

A. Yes.

Q. When you refer to "all issues within the
family, " to what were you referring?

A. I can't recall. I see "litigation™"
there. That was one thing. But I can't recall what
the other issues were at the time.

Q. Well, one of the issues was the lack of
agreement regarding whether Margaret or Jim and

Margaret would be the trustees of the voting trust,

correct?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Lacks
foundation.

THE WITNESS: Well, that's litigation in
my mind.‘
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Okay. 8o let me ask a different
question.
Were you referring to the disputes or,
as the case may be, litigation involving the

question of whether it would be Margaret Cotter,

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: I didn't -— I don't recall

that part of the —— of the meeting after we were —
ended.
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Do you recall that the — that that
evening there was a conference call during which
Ellen Cotter reported that she and Margaret on one
hand and Jim Cotter, Jr., on the other hand had
reached a tentative settlement that resolved the
trust and estate litigation and disputes between
them and included certain iﬁems relating to the
governance of RDI?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

THE WITNESS: I recall a phone call or
something saying they had reached an agreement. I
don't recall what they had reached or what it
involved, but. an agreement whereby they would work
together going forward.
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. And do you recall that as a result of
that, the vote to terminate Jim Cotter, Jr., as
president and C.E.0. was not had?

A. Correct, it was not had then.

Q. And do you recall that a week or ten

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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days later when no agreement between Ellen and

Margaret Cotter on one hand and Jim Cotter, Jr., on
the other had come to pass or into existence that
the supposed board meeting was reconvened on

June 12, comma — June 12, 2015 and that the vote

wag had and he was terminated as president and

C.E.0.?
A. Yes
MR. SEARCY: Obijection. Vague, assumes
facts.
THE.WITNESS: I recall that, yes.
BY MR. KRUM:
Q. And did you ever communications with

Ellen or Margaret Cotter during the course of these
supposed board meetings regarding whether a
settlement of any sort had been reached with Jim
Cotter, Jr.?
MR. SEARCY: Obijection. Argumentative.
THE WITNESS: I may have.
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. What's your best recollection about what
you qommunicated with them and what they
communicated to you?

A. I can't recall directly. My

communications by that time were all with Jim

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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I —— I said to him at one point, "Take

1
2 it. You have nothing to lose. You're going to get
3 terminated if you don't. If you can work it out
4 with your sisters, it will go on and I will support
5 you. 1'll even make a motion to see if the company
5] will reimburse the legal fees.”
7 I did not want him to go.
8 and you, I'm sure, see emails in there
9 to that effect. Even though I voted —— was voting
10 against him, I wanted him to stay as C.E.O.
11 BY MR. KRUM:
12 Q. If you wanted him to stay as C.E.Q. -——
13 A. Right.
14 Q. -— why did you vote against him?
15 A Because I wanted him to stay as C.E.Q.,
16 working with his sisters who were work -- willing to
117 work with him for the benefit of the company.
18 And to me it was a wonderful sq}ution,
19 and it had no adverse impact. If it didn't work
20 out, then we would deal with it. But he would work
21 witﬁ them and -- as an executive committee.
22 He told me that he didn't want Guy Adams
23 on there. And I told him, "I'1ll do my best to make
24 sure that he isn't on that; just you and your
25 sisters."
Litigation Sexrvices | 800-330-1112
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And if they could work together, that's

all we wanted.

0. Are you drawing a distinction, Mr. Kane,
between Ellen and Margaret working with Jim
Cotter, Jr., as distinct from working for him?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

THE WITNESS: I don't think I ever made
that distinction, but I think he would glean and
learn a lot working with them.

after all they were the operating
executives of this company.

BY MR. KRUM:

¢. And did you understand that — strike
that.

But that resolution did not come to pass
because Jim Cotter, Jx., rejected it, correct?

MR, SEARCY: Objection. Vagué.

THE WITNESS: He rejected it, yes.

(Whereupon Ms. Bannett left the

deposition proceedings at this

time.)

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. And he got himself terminated, right?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE '

1

2

3 I, PATRICIA L, HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
4

5 That T am a duly gualified Certified

6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,
7 helder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full

8 force and effect, and that I am autherized to

8 administer caths and. affirmations;
10
it That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12  the herein named witness, to wit, EDWARD KANE, was

13 taken before me at the time and place herein set

14 forth;

15

16 That prior to being efamined, EDWARD KANE
17 was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the truth,
18 the whole truth, and nothing but the truth;

19 |
20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21  objections made at the time of examination were
22 recorded stencgraphically by me aud were thereafter
23  transcribed by me or under my directiofi and
24  supervision;

25
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That the foregoing pages contain a full,

true and accurate record of the proceedings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or artorney or counsel of any of the
parties, nor am I a relative or employes of such
éttarney or counsel, nox am I financially interested

in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my

name this 4th day of May, 2016.
S RN
VNS
/jﬁZﬁZm@%j\%Zgéwhﬁil,ﬂ
]

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400
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Page 210
So, directing your attention to the

period of time from September 2015 through June —-—
excuse me. Let's start that again.

Directing your attention, Mr. Kane, to
the period of time from September 2014 through June
2015, do you recall that you and some, if not all,
of the other four non-Cotter directors devoted
substantial time to attempting to enable or
encourage the,thiee Cotter siblings to work together
professionaliy and politely?

A, Yes.

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

THE WITNESS: O©Oh, sorry.

MR. SEARCY: That's all right.

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Is it correct to say in your view,

Mr. Kane, that those efforts were largely
unsuccessful?

A, Yes.

0. With respect to your understanding as to
the matters in dispute between Jim Cotter, Jr., on
one hand and either or both Ellen and Margaret
Cotter on the other hand, did you understand that
one of the issues in dispute was who would control

the —— the trust that held class B voting stock;

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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k] that is, RDI class B voting stock?
2 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.
3 THE WITNESS: Yes.
4 BY MR, KRUM:
5 Q. You understood that there was a 2000 —
6 a so-called 2013 amendment to the trust
7 documentation of James Cotter, Sr., that provided
8 that Margaret Cotter would be the sole trustee of
9 the trust that held and voted the class B RDI voting
10 stock, right?
11 A. Correct.
12 Q0. You also understood that the so-called
13 2014 amencdment to the trust documentation of James
14 Cotter, Sr., provided that Margaret. Cotter and Jim
15 Cotter, Jr., would in some manner, whether jointly
16 or alternatively, vote the RDI class B voting stock,
17  right?
18 A. Correct.
19 Q. Was there a point in time, Mr, Kane,
20 when you concluded that that dispute needed to be
21 resolved in order for the siblings, meaning Jim
22 Cotter, Jr., on one hand and Ellen and Margaret
23 Cotter on the other hand, to get along and work
24  together?
25 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112

www.litigationservices.com

JA4351




EDWARD KANE -~ 05/03/2016

- TN. - IE: E . S B I

N N N NN N R~ 2 B R B e
nm & W N B O v o 3 o b &8 W N B O

Page 257
foundation.

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Was it your understanding that he did
intend for Margaret to become an employee of RDI?

A, I had no understanding either way.

Q. Now, directing your attention, Mr. Kane,
to your prior testimony regarding Margaret being the
sole trustee of the voting trust under the 2013
amendment and something to the effect that that was
part of Jim Cotter, Sr.'s plan to cause the Cotter
children to work together, in that context, learning
whatever you learned about the 2013 amendmenﬁ, did
you have any understanding as to what Jim Cotter,
Sr.'s intentions regarding whether Margaret Cottexr
would become an employee of RDI?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.
THE WITNESS: I had no understanding.
BY MR. EKRUM:

Q. Now, I'm not going te sum up again your
prior testimony. I'm just going to refer you to the
subject matter.

Referring you, Mr. Kane, to your
testimony about your understanding as to why in the
2013 amendment Margaret had been designated as

trustee of the voting trust, how did you come to

Litigation Services | 1.800,330.1112
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have that understanding?

A. Mr. Cotter informed me. In ¢one of Sur
conversations he said he wag making Margaret the
trustee of the voting stock.

And I asked him why. And he told me --
and it's right in my brain, it's imprinted on it ——
that "that will force them to work together."

That's a quote. )

Q. What else did you say or what else did
he say in that conversation about either the trust
documentation or The Cotter children working
together?

A. Excuse me, Repeat that, please..

Q. What else did he say, if anything,
during that conversation about the trust
documentation?

A. Nothing that I can recall.

Q. What else, if anything, did he say
during that conversation about prompting or forcing
the three ~— his three Cotter children to work
togethar? ) ‘

A. He didn't need to say anything. I knew
what he was talking about.

Q. What was your understanding at the time?

A. Understanding was that their diverse

Litigation Servieces | 1.800.330,1112
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personalities, and there had been some incidents --

I call incidents, nothing specific or difficult --
at board meetings that I thought it was a good idea~
to make Margaret, given the bécquound -— I was
surpfised, but I thought it was a good idea that he
make Margaret the sole trustee.

Q. Were you present for what you have

called incidents at board meetings?

A. Yes.
Q. o what are you referring?
A. When we had board meetings Mr. -— excuse

me. Get a little water.

Margaret and Ellen Cotter would give
reports. Jim Cotter, Jr., was not the president at
that time, and he would always have questions for
them. It appeared to me that he would have
questions that he was seeking to embarféss them
before the other directors.

: And he asked questions that he knew the
answer to, because he was being paid to run a weekly
executive committee meeting.

But it was like brother/sister fighting.
He knew the answer and there was no reason to ask
those questions.

and that's about the only input he ever

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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A. I think I knew better than anybody what
he would have wanted. I've known him for - I knew
him for 50 years.

‘We would have regular meetings in Laguna
just the two of us, talk over strategy, talk over
his children, talk over all issues.

And it was reflected in his comment to
me that he was giving Margaret the voting power to
force them to work together. _

So, I knew that's what he wanted.

MR. KRUM: 1I'l1l ask the court reporter
to mark as Exhibit 111 a two-page document bearing
production number 5488 and 89.

{Whereupon the document referred

to was marked Plaintiffs’

Exhibit 111 by the Certified

Shorthand Reporter and is attached

hereto.)

THE WITNESS: (Indicating.)

MR. SEBRCY: That's for the court
reporter.

THE WITNESS: Oh.

BY MR. KRUM:
Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 111?

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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1 A. That and the fact that he made Margaret
2 the trustee of the voting stock and told me it was
3  to force them to work together.
4 Q.  You understood, by the way, sir, that
5 the 2014 amendment made Margaret and Jim, Jr.,
6 co-trustees of the voting trust, right?
7 A. It purports to do that, yes.
8 Q. When you say "it purports to do that,”
9' I'm not asking whether you agree with it. I'm
10 asking if you understood what it provides by its
11 terms —
12 A. I know —-
13 0. TIet's not speak over each other. ILet me
14 ask the question and then you can respond.
15 You understand, Mr. Kane, that the
16 so—éalled 2014 amendment by its terms makes Margaret
17 Cotter and Jim Cotter, Jr., the co-trustees of the
18 voting trust that would vote the RDI class B voting
19 stock, right?
20 A, Yes,
21 Q. You also understand that that
22 documentation provides that if they —— to the effect
23 that if Margaret and Jim, Jr., cannot agree, they
24 will each be the trustee in alternating years?
25 A. Yes.
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112°
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1 Q. Now, we began to talk over each otheiige 7
2 Were you about to tell me something

3  about whether you thought the 2014 amendment

4 reflected what you understand to be Jim Cotter,

5 Sr.'s wishes?

6 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague,.

7 THE WITNESS: That's what the Court will
8 decide. |

9 I don't —— I try to stay out of that. I
10 have my own opinion, but I don't have all the facts.
11 BY MR, KRUM;
12 Q. What's the basis'for your opinion?
13 . The conversation that you described to
14 us already?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Anything else?

17 A. 50 years of friendship. And so I think |
18 I knew him in some respects better than any member
19 of his family. |
20 Q. Okay. BAnd your opinion is that based on
21 the facts you have —

22 A, Yes.
23 Q. —— and not considering the facts you
24  acknowledge you do not have ——

25 A. I don't know if there are any.
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Q. Right. But based on the facts you have,

you think it's the 2013 amendment that reflects Jim
Cotter, Sr.'s wishes?

A. Yes.

Q. So, returning to your May 9, 2015 email
that's part of Exhibit 111, it continues where we
left off with the words, quote,

| "Second, because it is in the best

interest of the.company,“ close
quote.

You see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And are you referring there to what
you've described earlier in terms of how inmportant
you thought it was Jim Cotter, Jr., succeed at
repairing his relationship with Ellen and Margaret
Cotter?

MR. SEARCY: Objection., Vague.

THE WITNESS: Of course it would be in
the best interest of the company if they were
working together.

BY MR. KRUM:

Qo. Continuing on, Mr. Kane, the text in

that same paragraph of Exhibit 111 says,

"Third, because it will safeguard

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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your May 22 email, part of Exhibit 112, quote,
"You might think about it on the
drive down here," close quote.

Were you telling him he should
raconsider his —— his rejection of the proposal
described in your second sentence af that paragraph?

A. I don't know what T had in mind at that
tiﬁe. I don't even -— I know that there was a
proposal made that he take the title of president
and not C.E.0., but that was from Bill Gould.

Q. Margaret's proposal was an executive
cormittee proposal, was it not?

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague as to
time.

BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Well, here, let me —— go ahead,
Mr. Kane.

A. That's not my recollection at this
point.

Q. Well, let's go back to your second
sentence, because it perhaps will refresh your
recollection.

After the part about Margaret suggesting
he take what the board offered, I'd focus your

attention, please, Mr, Kane on the words and,

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
) .
3 I, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
4
5 That I am a duly qualified Certified
6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,
7 holder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full
8 force and effect, and that I am authorized to
9 administer ocaths and affirmations;
10 ’
'il That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12 the herein named witness, to wit, EDWARD KANE, was
13 taken before me at the time and place herein set
14 forth; 7
15
16 That prior to being examined, EDWARD KBNE
17 was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the truth,
18  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth;
19
20 That the testimony of the witness and all’
21 objections made at the time of examination were
22 recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter
23  transcribed by me or under my direction and
24 supervision;
25
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That the foregoing pages contain a full,

true and accurate record of the proceedings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or attorney or counsel of any of the
partieé; nor am I a relative or employee of such
attorney or counsel, nor am I financially interested

in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my
name this 10th day of May, 2016.
&
N bk

//ﬁﬁlmgf Tt

/0

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400
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that Margaret be the sole trustee of the voting .

trust that bheld --

A. Yes.
Q. -~ the class B voting stock?
A. Yes.

0. Do you recall how you learned that?

A. I don't. '

Q. And the next sentence reads, quote,
"As T said, your dad told me that
giving Margaret the vate was his
way of, sub guote, forcing, close
Vsub quote, the threa of you to work
together," close quote.

Does that refer to discussions about -
which I believe you've already testified, Mr. Xane,
you had with Jim Cotter, Sr.?

" A. Yes.
Q. Bnd the next sentence in paragraph
pumbered one in Exhibit 306 reads as follows, guote,
"Asking to change that is a
nonstarter," close quote, with
"nonstarter" being italicized.
Do you see that?
A, Yes.
Q. VWhy did you say that?
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

1

2

3 I, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
- 4

5 That I am a duly qualified Certified

6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,

7  holder of Certificate Number 3400, which-is in full

8 force and effect, and that I am authorized to

9 administer caths and affirmations: »

10

11 That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12 the herein named witness, to wit, EDWARD KANE, was

13 taken before me at the time and place herein set

14  forth; '

15

16 That prior tc being examined, EDWARD KANE
17 was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the truth,
18 the whole truth, and nothing but the truth;

19

20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21  objections made at the time of examination were
22 recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter
23 transcribed by me or under my direction and

24  supervision;

25
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That the foregoing pages contain a full,

true and accurate record of the proceédings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or attorney or counzel of any of the
parties, nor‘am I a relative or enployee cf such
attorney or counsel, nor am I financially interested

in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have subscribed my

name this 15th day oi/;?ne, 2016. "
13

/

PATRICIA L. HRUBBARD, CSR #3400
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also talked about the independence of ——
BY MR. TAYBACK:

Q. Who's "we talked about®?

A. You and I.

Q. Okay-

A Well, I've spoken about the process.
I've —— and there's alzo the independence or lack of
independence of the directors who made that
decision. |
And I do not believe that Mr. Adams could 12:17:15
have made a proper decision to terminate the CEO
given his absolute dependence-on Ellen and Margaref
for hig livelihood.
and I do mot believe that Mr. Kane, given

his 47-year-long relationship with Ellen and 12:17:39
Margaret, and the fact that he had been absolutely
co-opted into the civil war that had erupted between
my sister Ellen and Margaret on the one hand and me
on the other hand, with my mother calling him up in
tears and telling bim what be should do, not do, 12:18:05
that he was in a position to make an independent
decision about whether a public company should
terminate its CEO.

Q. Mr. McEachern is independent, made the same

decision. 12:18B:24
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T, JANICE SCHUTZMAN, Certified Shorthand

‘Reporter of the State of California, do hereby

certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken
before me at the time and place herein set forth:
that any witnesses in the foregoing proceedings,
prior to testifying, were ﬁlaced under oath; that
the testimony of the witness and all cobjections made
by counsel at the time of the sxamination were
recorded stenographically by me, and were thersafter
transcribed under my direction and supervision; and
that the foregoing pages contain a fnll, true and
accurate record of all proceedings and testimony to
the best of my =kill and ability.

I further certify that I am neither financially
interested in the action noxr a relative cr employee
of any attorney or any of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name

this 19th day of May, 2016.

JANICE SCHUTZMAN

CSR No. 9509

' Page 297

Verilext Legal Solutions
866 299-5127

JA4376



Exhibit 7

Exhibit 7

JA4377



w e

w ~ ;W

10
11
iz
13
14
15
18
17
18

19

20

21
22
23

124

25

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., )
individually and )
derivatively ¢n behalf of)
Reading International,
Inc.,

Case No. A-15-719860-B
Plaintif$f,
Coordinated with:
vE.
Case No. P-14-082342-E
MARGARET COTTER, et al.,

Defendants.
and

READING INTERNATIONAL;
INC., a Nevada
coxrporation,

Nominal Defendant

P AP D e e R Rl i

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF MARGARET COTTER
TAKEN ON MAY 13, 2016

VOLUME IX

REPORTED BY:

PATRICIA L. HUBBARRD, CSR #3400

JA4378



MARGARET COTTER, VOLUME II — 05/13/2016

Page 322

1 Wrotniak, please.

2 A. She is a college friend. I speak to

3 her —- I don't know -— once every three or four

4 weeks. I see her maybe four times a year. 1t

5  varies. She had kids very early on after college,

6 so I really didn't see her that much,

7 And now that I have kids and work, I

8 don't see her that often.

o Q. Doeg she still -- well, as of today is
10 sha one of fcur best friends?
11 MR. SEARCY: Objection. Vague.

12 THE WITNESS: I would consider her a
13 close friend.

14  BY MR. KRUM:
15 Q. And describe your relationship with
16 Michael Wrotniak.’

17 A. I don't talk to him oxr see him as T --
i8 as I had done with Patricia. I would maybe see him -
19 once a year if I went to her house for dinner, but I
20 wouldn't consider I have, you know, an ongoing
21 relationship with him.
22 Q. How often do you communicate with him?
23 A. Now?
24 Q. How often did you communicate with him
25 in 20147 |

Litigation Services | 600-330-1112
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Oh, he would email me if he wanted show

How often did you communicate with him

I don't know.

MR. KRUM: I'1l ask the court reporter
Exhibit 160 --

THE REPORTER: Yes.

MR. KRUM: -~ two pages, the first of

which is dated April 9, 2015, and appears to be an

email from

Margaret Cotter to Kelley Anderson with

the subject "Michael Wrotniak." Production numbers

are MC2812

it.

exhibit —--

and 13.

{Whereupon the document referred
to was marked Plaintiffs’

Exhibit 160 by the Certified
Shorthand Réporter and is attached
hereto.)

MR. FERRARIO: ‘This has a red mark on
MR. KRUM: A what?
MR. FERRARIO: 158. There you go.

MR. KRUM: ©Oh, I passed you a prior

MR. FERRARIO: That's all right.

Litigation Services | B§00-330-1112
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2.
3 1, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
1 ‘ '
5 That I am a duly gualified Certified
6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,
7 holder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full
8 force and effect, and that I am authorized to
9 administer vaths and‘affirmations; |
16
11 That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12  the herein named witness, to wit, MARGARET COTTER, was
13 taken-before me at the time and place herein set
14  foxth;
15
16 That prior to being examined, MARGARET
17 COTTER was duly swofn or affirmed by me to testify the
18 truth, the whole trxuth, and nothing but the truth;
13
20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21 objections made at the time of examination were
22 recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter
23 traﬁscribed by me or under my direction and
24 supervision;
25
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www.litigationservices.com
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That the foregoing pages contain a full,

true and accurate recoxd of the proceedings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or attorney or counsel of any of the
parties, nor am I a relative or employee of such
attorney or counsel, nor am I financially interested

in the owtcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my

name this 17th day of May, 2016.

R
R e "
7 5{7;‘? -t '}/}‘\\;;?szfm,ﬁ{y/
n

7

s

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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From: Unger, Jill (US) <JillUnger@RalphLauren.com>

Sent Wednesday, September 17, 2014 10:54 AM
To: Margaret Cotter
Subject: Re: News about my dad

So beautifully written.
You were 5o fortunate to have a dad like him.
XOXOXOXOXOKOXOKOKUXGND

~n Qriginal Message -

Fram; Margaret Cotter [mailto:margaret.cotter@readingrdi.com]

Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 12:54 AM _

To: Unger, Jill {(US); Patricia Wrotniak <pwrotniak@hotmail.com>; Kim Fanning <kicrewl@aol.com>; Jenny Kallenbach
<JKallenbach@CATICACCESS.COM>: Michaela Burschinger <bkaela@enac.com>; Tiffany Sacks

<tiffany @sackshome com>; Patricia Mclain <patricia_mclain@hetmail.com>

Subject: News about my dad

1t i% with the deepest sadness that we announce the passing of James J, Cotter, Sr,

Jim lost his battle to cancer on Saturday, September 13, 2014. As he did in life, Jim fought valiantly until the end. Qur
family is completely heartbroken over the foss of our father, mentor and friend. We hope you will join us in cherishing
the colorful memories that this brilliant man bestowed upon us.

A Memorial Mass to celebrata his life will be held in Los Angeles at 5t Pauls the Apostle next Friday. See attachment.
Margaret Cotter _

This message and any attached documents contain information which may be confidential, subject to privilege or
exempt from disclosure under applicable law. These materials are intended only for the use of the intended recipient. If
you are not the intended recipient of this transmission you are hereby notified that any distribution, disclosure, printing,
copying, storage, maodification or the taking of any action in reliance upon this transmission is strictly prohibited,
Nelivery of this message to any persan other than the intended recipient shall not compromise or waive such
confidentiality, privilege or exernption from disclosure as to this communication. If you have recelved this
communication in error, please immediately notify the sender and delete the message from your system.
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From: Patricia Wrofniak <pwrotniak@hotmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 26, 2014 2:37 PM
To: Margaret Cotter
Subject: RE: Favorll!

This Is tough for you all....l am so sorry that you are going through this.Hopefully Thanksgiving Day will be a bit ofa
respite far you, it will be a nice dinner. Just try to relax and since the nanny Is coming have a few cocktaits}

By the way, we saw The Elephant Man on Friday evening with Bradley Cooper....just Michael and 1.it was really
good....ha is an amazing actor....vary versatile|

Thinking of you and thanks for checking on the tickets|Triciaxoxo

To: pwrotniak@hotmail.com
Subject: Re: Favor!f}

From: amcotteri@acl.com

Date: Tue, 25 Nov 2014 17:55:31 -0500

hi... had to eome to ny sunday night. headed back thursday morning. [m so sick of this! § am sure would be ok.., let me
find out tomorrow. have fun... going to bel air for thanksgiving with mom ellen kids and nanny. duffy is sick. ems called

yesterday. he fell and ellen got worried. he asked the ems workers if they wanted to stay and play! im living in the
twilight zone., .

have goodd time.
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—-Original Message—-

From: Patricia Wrotniak <pwrotniak@®hotmail.com>
To: Margaret Cotter <amcotter] @aol.com» "

Sent: Tue, Nov 25, 2014 12:11 pm

Subject: Favort!!

Hi there} Hope you are doing OK.and not too stressed out!

How. was your birthday? Margot's?? What.are you doing for Thanksgiving?
1 will calf you tomorrow! We are going to The Mohorik House for my in-laws 50th wedding anniversary,

3 nights...J am Iooklng.forward to the break! and no cooking!!

JA4387



Mary really wants to see it's Only a Play with Rupert Grint {the guy who was Ron in Harry Potter).

Do you have any pull to get us 4 tickets for Saturday, January, 3rd....2pm matinee? Let me know when you havea
chance...if you can't get them I'll have Michael's asst. try through ticketmaster! Itis at the Sthoenfeld Theater. | think it
might be a tough ticket....so many big names....Nathan Lane, Mathew Broderick. | don't want to pay $250 a ticket

through a box office!!

Thanks and Il call tomorrow when 1 am on the rodetl

Lovse,
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From: : Margarat Cotter <ameotterl @aol coms

Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2014 8:15 PM
To: Patricia Wrotniak
Subject: Re:

Is the & mat on Wednesday? Usually we don't have one. Yesin Ja. So busy. Will call u Jater Yoday picking up dog for my
mom in any 2 hrs.she will have 3 heart attack but | want to be her for the first few days with the dog

Sent from my iPhone
On Feb 26, 2014, at 11:23 AM, Patricia Wrbtmiak <pwrotnizk@hotmail.com> wrote:

> Hi there! Sent you a text yesterday! 1am home from Florida and just playing catch up!

> Are you still gaod to get us 4 tickets to STOMP for the G5P kids? Any interest in treating them to a casual dinner that
evening ton??? Samething Inexpansive in the neighborhood?? | hope you don't think [am asking too much....you know |
am not pushy...just trying to get other alums involved i their week so they don’t spend too much of their own
money...they really don't have much but are such nice guys and so grateful to be spending the week with us. Even if
there is a fun, cheap, famous pizra place near the theatre: | was thinking maybe a Wednesday matinee for the
show....that would bé March 12th, let me know what you think!

-

> Are you back yet? Hope you are all doing wel{! Still can't get over that beautiful picture of Margot!

> By the way; we should grab dinner together one night and go see "Beautiful" together....that Carol King Broadway
show. Could you swing asitter one night? Or even a Saturday matinee and then an early dinner!

# Hugs and Kisses to the childreni!!]

>T
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From: Mérgaret Cotter

Sent: . Wednesday, November 19, 2014 10:37 PM
To: Michael Wrotniak
Subject: RE: Stomp tickets

The dates are fine... get me the name and we will set it up....thanks!

From: Michael Wrotniak {mailto:m.wiotniak@aminco.biz]
Sent; Wednesday, November 19, 2014 2:30 PM

To: Margaret Cotter

Subject; RE: Stomp tickets

Hi Margaret,

Hope you are ok...

The winner of the Stomp tickets came forward o claim her prize. _

The woman suggested two dates — Dec 3 or Dec 4 with a preference for the 3%,
| will get her Jast name once you work out the dates,

Thank you.

Michael

From: Margaret Cotter [mailto:margaret.cotter @readingrdi.com]
Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 7:55 PM

To: Michael Wrotniak

Subject:

{ need the ticket requast lennon for litte sisters

Margaret Colter

Liberty Theatres LIC

189 Second Ave Suiter 3N § New York, New York 10003
©.212.871.6834 1 ¢, 917.705.4458
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To: Kelley Anderson
Subject: . FW:

From; Michael Wrotniak [mailty:m.wrotnisk@amineo.biz]
Sent: Friday, November 14, 2014 843 AM

To: Margaret Cotter

Subject: RE:

Hello Margaret—

Bday coming up right — Happy Birthday to y‘ou.

Thanks for the reminder about the Lennon fix

Dec & — two tickets for the evening show under the name:
Mr. Francois Chaillou

Thanks again for your contributiorn to the Little Sisters.
Michael

PS How is Leninon doing ?

Fram: Margaret Cotter [mailto:margaret cotter@readingrdi.com]

Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 7:55 PM
To: Michael Wrotniak
Subject:

! need the ticket request lennon for little sistars
-~

Margaret, Cotter

Likerty Theatres 11C .

389 Second Ave Suite 3N § New York, New York 10003
0, 212.871.6834 | ¢, 917.705.4458
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From: Kelley Anderson
Sent: Tuesday, December 02, 2014 8:44 PM
To: Margaret Cotter
Subject: RE: Stomp tickets

| did and I confirmed with him- it is all set!

From: Margaret Cotter

Sent:

Tuesday, December 02, 2014 3:43 PM

To: Kelley Anderson
Subject: FW: Stomp tickets

Did you handle this? and email Michael?

v ety A pvee - P A LS AL D AN A I R T e . ST

From: Margaret Cotter

Sent:

Monday, December 01, 2014 9:41 AM

To: Kelley Anderson
Subject: Fwd: Stomp tickets

Can u set these up

Margaret Cotter

Liberty Theatres, LLC| 189 Second AvenuesSuite 3N
New York, New York 20003 | p.212.871.6834
Sent from my iPhone .

Begin forwarded message:

From: Michael Wrotniak <m.wrotniak@aminco.biz>
Date: Decemnber 1, 2014, 7:59:20 AM PST

To: Margaret Cotter <margaret. cotter@readingrdi.com:
Subject: RE; Stomp tickets

Hi M,

i hope you had a nice Thanksgiving with your kiddies ~ | arn sure this year was more difficult than most
with the adults - but day by day....

Regarding Stomp, for Dec 3 — can you hold two house tickets under the name Judy Rudderow. Itis the
8 pm show on Wed Dec 3 correct?

Thanks again Margaret.

Kind regards

Michaet

PS Trida and ) sat in the second row for Elephant Man a week ago - very good show. Cooperis a good

actor
1
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From: Margaret Cotter [mailtoimargaret. cotter@readingrdi.com
Sent: Wednesday, November 19, 2014 5:37 PM

To: Michael Weotniak

Subject: RE: Stomp tickets

The dates are fine... get me the name and we will set it up....thanks!

From: Michae) Wrotniak [mailto:n,wrotniak@aminco.biz

Sent: Wednesday, November 19, 2014 2:20 PM

To: Margaret Cotter

Subject: RE: Stomp tickets

Hi Margaret,

Hope you are ok...

The winner of the Stomp tickets came forward to claim her prize.

The woman suggested twa dates — Dec 3 or Dec 4 with a preference for the 3",
1 will get her last name once you work cut the dates.

Thank you.

Michael

-me: Margaret Cotter [mailto:margaret.cotter@readingrdi.com}
Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 7:55 PM

To: Michael Wrotniak

Subject;

{ need the ticket request lennon for little sisters

Margaret Cotter

Liberty Thealres LIC

189 Secand Ave Suite 3N | New York, New York 10003
o, 212.871.6834 1. 917.705.4458
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From: Kelley Anderson

Sent: Monday, June 09, 2014 4:46 PM
To: '‘Mary Cotter'
Subject: RE: Please do me a favor -

This is in the mail and all set! Let me know if you need anything else!

Kelley

From: Mary Cotter [mailto: marytimely@yahoo.com)]
Sent: Sunday, June 08, 2014 11:04 AM

To: Kelley Anderson

Subject: Flease do me a favor -

Kelley: | would so appreciate if you could fedex to Judy Codding some invoices - my computer does
not connect to Margaret printer. Her address is Judy Codding 22668 Canyon Back Road Los Angeles
Ca, 90049 tel 310 476 1854. Do it overnite. Thanks and I will email you again with the nbr of
invoices. Thanks and call me at Margaret if you need any info. Much appreciated.

Mary E. Cotter

Designer Travel, Inc.

13245 Riverside Dr. Suite 560
Sherman Oaks CA 91423

t. 310-559-0581

f. 310-425-8841
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From: Kelley Andefsan

Sent; Monday, June 09, 2014 815 PM
To: ‘Mary Cotter’
Subject: RE: Please dor mie a favor -

Yes! Fedex overnight- they shouid have it around 9:30am tomorrow.

Thanks!}
Kelley

From: Mary Cotter i
Sentz Monday, June 03, 2014 416 PM
Tao: Kelley Anderson

Subject: Re: Please do me a favor -

Kelley: Do you do FEDEX - THANKS,

Mary E. Cotter

Designer Travel, Inc.

13245 Riverside Dr. Suite 560
Sherman Oaks CA 91423

t. 310-559-0581

f. 310-425-8841

On Manday, June 9, 2014 8:4B AM, Keliey Anderson <KEelley Anderson@readingrdi.com> wrote:

This is in the mail and all seil Let me know if you need anything else!

Kelley

From: Mary Cofter [mailfo:manvtimely@yahoe.com
Sent; Sunday, June 08, 2014 11:04 AM

To: Kelley Anderson

Subject: Please do me a favor -

Kelley: |would so appreciate if you could fedex to Judy Codding some invoices - my computer does
not connect to Margaret printer. Her address is Judy Codding 2266 Canyon Back Road Los Angsles
Ca. 90049 tel 310 476 1854, Do it ovemite. Thanks and | will email you again with the nbr of
invoices. Thanks and call me at Margaret if you need any info. Much appreciated.

Mary E. Cotter

Designer Travel, Inc.

13245 Riverside Dr. Suite 560
Sherman Qaks CA 91423

t. 310-5659-0581

f 310-425-8841
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From: amcotterl@aacl.com

Sent: : Tuesday, October 06, 2015 9:26 PM .
T kingsherry@gmail.com; judycodding @gmail.com
Subject: Re: Hamilton??7?

Hi,. yes | am back in my "new” routine and in the kindergarien interviewing frenzy. Being in LA was so nice having my
mother as a fall back, | know she was not so quietly counting the days to our deparurel!

‘You picked the most popular show but | can try. Shows have producer seats available for purchase, They are full price
tickets without the service charges and no broker mark ups. Usually show's house seat book opens a month prior io
performance month 50 we are a little behind. Can you call oremait e a credit card#, expiration, security code , billing
zip, and celiphone to reach you so | can submit the order?

Margaret
9177054458

~—-Original Message—
From: Sherry King <kingshegy@gmail. com>

To: margaret <ampotter] @aol.com>; Judy Codding <judycodding@gmail.com>

Sent; Sun, Oct 4, 20156 7.08 pm

Subject: Hamitton?7?7

Hi Margaret. I hear you're back and into the NY
routine.....I'm sure it's as hectic here as ever with those

adorable kids!

Judy Codding has to be in New York the week-end of Oct.
24-25. Is there any way you might be able to get us
tickets to Hamilton for Sunday the 25? We absolutely
would pay, but as you know, they're close to impossible to
get. I have no idea if that's feasible for you. I know from
my ancient days hanging out with the general manager of
the Public Theater, that there were generally house seats
like that if you were lucky enough to know someone.
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JBEMES J, COTTER, JR., ]
individually and )
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Reading International, )
Inc.,
Case No. A-15-719860-B
Flaintiff,
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Case No. P—-14-082942-E
MARGARET COTTER, et al.,

and
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Defendants. )
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Page 307
the context of largex discussions you were having

with your mother?

A, T don’'t recall the conversations.

Q. If your mother had said to you in woxds
or substance that she thought that it was a bad idea
to ask Ms. Codding to join the RDI board of
directors or expressed any such sentiment with
raservations, would that have made any difference to
hew yon proceeded? |

MR. SEARCY: Objection. Lacks
foundatien, calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: My mother's opinions on
Judy Codding had no bearing on me asking Judy to be
on the board. Judy has an amazing background. And
I've known of her for years.

So, whatever my mother thought about hei
did ﬁot factor into my analysis at all.
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. How hawve you known —-— how had you known
of Mg, Codding for years?

A. I had known of her reputation.

Q. Had you ever met her?

A. Yes.

Q. On how many occasions?

A. I don't know. I don't know.

Litigation Bervices | 800-330-1112
www,. litigationservices. com
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ELLEN COTTER, VOLUME II - 05/19/201¢6

1 Q. Can you estimate? rage 308
2 A. It wasn't frequent. .Prior to asking

3 Judy to consider being on the board I might have met
4 her —— I don't know -— between five and ten times
5 maybe.

6 Q. Over what period of time?

7 A. Probably the last 15 years.

8 Q. 2nd where had you met her? At your

9 mother's housea?

10 A. I met her at my mother's house on one
11 occasion that I recall.
12 Q. TWhere else had you met her?
13 A. I would have met her with Peggy and

14 Haxrvey Saferstein.
15 Q. Did you ever mest her with your mother
16 other than at your mother's h&use an one occasion
17 that you recall? -

18 A. I don't recall.

19 Q. Who are Peggy and Harvey Safersteiné
20 ~A.  They are family friends,
21 Q. Cotter family friends?

22 A. Cotter family friends.
23 Q. Are they your mother's age? Are they
24  your mother's friends?
25 A. Yes.
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com
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- Page 440
REPORTER’S CERTIFICATE

1
2
3 I, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
4
5 That I am a duly gualified Certified
6 Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of California,
7  holder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full
8 force and effect, and that I am authorized to
9 administer oaths and affirmations;
19
11 That the foregoing deposition testimony of
12 the herein named witness, to wit, ELLEN M. COTTER, was
13 +taken before me at the time and place herein set
14 forth;
15
16 That prior to being egamined, ELLEN M.
17 COTTER was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the
18  truth, the whole truth, and nmothing but the truth;
19
20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21  objections made at the timé of exémination were
22 recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter
23  transcribed by me or under my direction and
24  supervision:
25
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www . litigationservices.com
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‘true and accurate record of the proceedings and

Page 450
That the foregoing pages contain a full,

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or attorney or counsel of any of the
parties, nor am I a relative or employee of such
attorney or counsel, nor am I financially interested

in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my

name this 24th day of May, 2016.

VRS
Jia D) fbtane
/ 0

{
PATRICIA L. HUBBRRD, CSR #3400

' Litjgation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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GUY ADAMS, VOLUME I - 04/28/2016

’ ' Page 28
MR. TAYBACK: Object to the form of the

1
2 question; vague.
3 . You can answer the question.
4 THE WITNESS: I don’'t think I thought of him
5 as my boss, no. He was -— I think of him more like
6 a partmer. If he needed help doing something, I
7 told him T would do it and he said he would
8 remunerate me for it.
9 BY MR. KRUM:
10 Q. Let me ask you a more precise questién.
11 A. Okay.
12 Q. So the person who made the decision that
13  you would be paid §52,000 a year by Cotter Family
14 Farms was Jim Cotter Senior; coxrect?
15 A. Correct.,
16 Q. And who is the person orx who were the
17 persons who make the decisioen today as to whethexr
18 you will gontinue to be paid 52,000 a year by
19 Cotter Family Farms?
20 A, I presume the estate that controls Cotter
21 Family Farms. '
22 Q. And by "the estata," you're referring to
23  the estate of Jim Cotter Senior; right?
24 A. Yes.
25 Q. And the co-executors of the estate are
Litigation Services | 1.800,330.1112

www.litigationservices.com
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Page 29

Margaret Cotter and Ellen Cotter; coxrrect?

A. To my understanding, yes.

Q. Have you had any communications with them
about continuing ox not continuing the work you've
been deing for which you're paid §52,000 a year by
Cotter Family Farms?

A. No.

Q. Have you aver had any conversations with
either both Margaret and/or Ellen Cotter about any
work you did for any Cotter Family owned or
controlled entities, whether Cotter Family Farms or
soma other entity? '

A, Yes.

¢. And give me the list of entities to
start, please. ' '

A. Well, the -— there's, within the -- not
the CDtﬁer estate but outside of the Cotter estate
are these captive lnsurance pompanies that are
owned by -- my understanding, they're owned by a
trust. BAnd Margaret is president of that. Those
insurance —- captive insurance companies, I'm CFO.
There's filing, reporting, things that need to be
done and administered, so I talk to Margaret about
that.

0. What are the -— well, first of all, how

Litigation Services | 1.800.330,111%2
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1 A. Roughly?
2 Q. Yes.
3 MR. TAYBACK: I'm going to designate this as
4 confidential private information under the
5 protective order.
6 MR. KRUM: That's fine.
7 THE WITNESS: I Jjust want to reiterate to you,
8 I'm not comfortable with this. I will answer it.
9 BY MR. KRUM:
10 Q. Here is what we're doing. Mr. Tayback
11 has designated your testimony about your --
12 MR. TAYBACK: Personal finances.
13 BY MR. KRUM:
14 Q. ~~ personal finances as confidential.
15 That means we handle it in a different way. It's
16 not going to be floating around in public so you
17 don't have to worry about that.
18 A. Approximately $900,000.
19 Q. And in May of last year, May of 2015,
20 what was your approximate net worth?
21 A.  Approximately $900,000.
22 Q. Okay. And is it correct ——
23 A. Maybe —— maybe it was a little more.
24 Q. I understand. It's approximate.
25 A. Yeah.
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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$4 million, something like that.

Q. So somewhare in or around 2008,
Mr. Cotter also taok his money out of your fund?

A. Oh, no. His money was in for a short
period of time. I was working on a couple things
that he thought were interesting.. He got in and
when those things were sold, he said, When can I
get my money out?

I said, You can take youxr money out at

the end of the quarter., So I would say he wasn't

in not even a year. It was a very fortuitous

investment. It worked out. For a fund starting

out, the first year is important and that was a

good investment for me. And Mr. Cotter asked for

his money out and I redeemed him.
Q. Okay. So what other business dealings,
if any, have you ever had with Jim Cotter Senior?

A. He's bought some real estate and that's

part of the farm management payment as well, is to.

Jook after these real estate investments he made.

And when he hired me and brought me aboard, he had

already made —- he had already made three of them

with a man named Tom Riley in Orange County. He's

a developer.

Mr. Cotter told me about the real estate

Page 41
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investments. I told him they sounded interesting

and he says, I need your help with them to oversee
them. I said, I'm,nét a real estate guy. This
isn't what I -- my strong suit, I'm sorry. He Xknew
that. He said, I don't care. I want you to help

me with them. And he said, You'll learn zomething.

It will be fun.

And candidly, working with Mr. Cotter,
even if T didn't know it, I'd learn about it along
the way-

But the point is that there were real
estate investments that Mr. Cotter made and three
of them were made before I got there, or maybe one
of them was made the week I walked in the door. I
had no involvement in it. And then one was made
approximately a year later.

Q. Sc how were you paid or what was tha
compensation arran@ement, if any, for you teo do
what you did with respect to these Ffour real estate
investments?

A. Mr. Cotter included the thousand dollars
a week from Family Farms and he said, I'm going to
make you my partner, a 5 percemnt partner on my real
estate ventures. I didn't bargain. I didn't

debate. I just said, Yes, thank you.

Litigation Servicesz | 1.800.330.1112
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1 2019 before the first ~— according to the rage b2
2 pro forma, before the first —- first you have to
3 pay out Stern. And affer he's paid out, then the
4 subordinated loan can get paid out, and I think
5 that's a 2019 economic event before that happens.
6 Q. 8o just for the purposes of understanding
7 how’you would be paid, I'm not arguing about when
8 it might ocour,
9 A. Okay.
10 Q. Let me pose the question this way.
11 A. Okay.
12 Q. So if it were today instead of 2019 or
13 later, the money would be paid to the entity that
14 is owned by Mr. Cotter and Mr. Riley —
15 A. Yes.
16 Q. -~ and then throeugh that entity, money
17 would go to Mr. Cotter, today his estaté?
18 A. Yes.
19 0. And then to you through the estate?
20 A, Yes. .
21 Q. What was his investment in that, by the
22 way? ’
23 A. One point —
24 MR. TAYBACK: Objection; foundation; calls for
25 speculation.
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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Q. What was that period of time?
A. 2013, 2014 or 2014, 2015.
Q. But are there still pieces remaining to

A. There are not but there is-a clause in
the agreement that says -- it's called a bonus
payment. And if the developer can sell his homes,
when he pro formas the sale, if he can meet his

pro forma, then he's good. If he can sell the

homes at a higher value, we get a lookback for a

quote, bhonus payment, and that's to beé determined
upon lookback.

Q. Which will be when?

A. I'm hoping the end of the year, that
calculation will be made, or the first part of next
year the calculation will be made. If any, 1if
there is a bonus payment.

Q. And the monies that you received from
this investment totaled to date —— totaled
approximately how much?

A. A little under $30,000, maybe 29, 28,
something like that.

Q. And how did those monies flow to you?

A. I believe I asked for a check to put in

GWA Advisors.

Litigation Services | 1.800,330,1112 -
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Q. Who wrote the check?

Fage 55

A. I think maybe the first check, a.Cotter

entity did. The second check, the Tom and Jim LLC

did.
Q. With whom did you interact to —
A. Ellen and Margaret.
Q. I didn't finish the question.
So Ellen and Hargaret were the persons
with whom you interacted to see to it that you
received your 5 percent?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that informally or did they have some

particular capacity, such as co-executors of the
estate?

MR. SWANIS: Objection; form.

MR. TAYBACK: Join.

THE WITNESS: Well, it was formulated that

there was a calculation. I mean, there's closing

costs of each section and all that in the

calculation. Informally, they -- they authorized

it,
BY MR, KRUM:

Q0. Okay. What's the fourth piece of real
estate?

A. It's called Leander Holdings,

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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L~e~a-n~d-e-r. It's alsc in Austin, Texas and it's

on the west side, the desirable side of Austin.

Q. What's the status of that?

A. It's being developed and we have buyers
for the first part of it and it's the same sort of
takedown. Developers agree to take down certain
parts of it. So Tom Riley builds it, puts the
gutters and power all in. They buy it and then Tom
has to get the second phase ready for them.
Leander, unlike Sorento, will go down in two phases
and there is no lookback, no bonus payment.

Q. How much money did Mr. Cotter invest in
Leander Holdings?

MR. TAYBACK: Objection; foundétion.

You can answer.

THE WITNESS: He invested approximately
$2.4 million.
BY MR. KRUM:

Q. And so when do you expect the — that's
not right. '

Have any payouté been made yet?

A, No.

Q. When do you anticipate the first payout
to occur?

A. Fourth quarter of this year, fourth

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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1 quarter next year, 1f there are no delays with

2 building, et cetera, putting the roads in.

3 Q. Those are the two payments, first and

4 second, that you anticipate in the fourth

5 quarter ——

6 A. I'm —— I'm not being completely accurate
) there, There's more one developer that's buying
'8 these lots and they;re,not all doing it the same

9 day, but they're within like two months of each
10 other. 8o I'd say the fourth gquarter —-— there's
11  three developers. The three developers are going
12 to close their lots. Tom has to get other lots
13 ready for the next closing from these three guys,
14 and their spacing isn't all in one month. It's
15 spread out. So fourth quarter is -- kind of
16 captures when the flow of funds would happen.

17 Q. And how will those funds flow to you?

18 Al I don't know. I presume just like

19 before, I would —— we would get the closing

20 statement, we'd look at the analysis, we'd

21 carefully check all the numbers and make the

22 calculation and I'd show them to Ellen and Margaret

23 Cotter of the estate and say, How would you like

24 the money wired in?

25 Q. How much money do you anticipate
Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112
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1 receiving from the Leander development?

2 MR. TAYBACK: Objection; vague as to the
-3 "you." Mr. Adams personally?

4 MR. XRUM: Yes, thank you.

5 TﬁE WITNESS: Honestly, I don't know. I can
6 think for a minute about it. We think about two --

7 maybe two, so five —— in two payments, 100,000.
8 Both payments, 50,000 each.

9 BY MR. KRUM:

10 Q. Okay. Thanks.
11 Have you done any other business beyond
12 vwhat you've described today with or for Mr. Cotter
13 Senior?

14 | A. None that I can think of at this time.
15 Q. Have you done any other businesgs with or
16 for either both Ellen Cottexr and/or Margaret

17 Cotter, whether as individnals, as co—-executors of
18 the estate or in any other capacity?

19 MR. TAYBACK: lOther than what he's already
20 mentioned?
21 BY MR. KRUM: _
22 ' Q. Other than what you've already mentioned,
23  yeah.

24 A# Other than what I already mentioned,

25 thank you.

Litigation Services | 1.800.330.1112

www,litigationservices.com

JA4422




" GUY ADAMS, VOLUME I - 04/28/2016

D 0 ;s N

NN N NN MR B R R HE B R
Oos W N R O W B e s W N RO

Page 161

Q. Did you vote Margaret president as well?
A, Yes, I did.
Q. Jim Junior did not participate; correct?

A. My recollection is he cheose not to
participate.

0. And what did they say to you at this
Junch in Be%erly Hills, if anything, with regard to
your ongoing interest in these real estate '
projects? |

A. They didn't say anything.

Q. What else, if anything, was discussed at
this lunch in Beverly Hills in August of 20147

A. My recollection is those were the two
issues we talked abﬁut.

0. Other than what you've already described,
Mr. Adams, in terms of your communications with
Ellen and/or Margaret Cotter regarding your
interest in these four real estate projects and
payment of monies to you, have you had any other
communications with either Ellen or Margaret Cotter
about either the real estate projects generally, oxr
particularly payments of money to you from them?

A, I go to Austin, Texas, generally once a
year and review the project and where we are and

find out how the economics are, and I talk to them

Litigation Sexrvices | 1.800.330.1112
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about that occasionally.

Q. Okay. Does that include talking about
when — when proceeds from the project could be
expected by the Cotter estate or entity and the
estate, as the case may be, and you?

A They have asked me that question, when

the proceeds from these developments will come

“about. My recollection i1s I gave them a schedule.

Q. A written schedule?

A. Yeah.

Q. When was that?

A. Maybe 2014. Late 2014.

c. Have you ever had any other conversations
with them beyond what you'wve already told us about
the real estate, those four real estalte ventures or
payment of monies to the Cotter estate and/or you?

A, No, none that I recall.

MR. KRUM: 1I'll ask the court reporter to mark
as Exhibit 58, a two-page document bearing |
production numbers GA00001613 and 14.

{Exhibit 58 was marked for
identification.)
BY MR. KRUM: .
Q. Mr. Adams, do you recognize Exhibit 587

A. Yes, I do.

Litigation Services | 1.800,330.1112
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‘stubscribed my name this 2nd) day of

- Tage 240
CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

[P
1423
2
a

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, Lori'Raye, a duly commissioned and
licenseéd court reporter for the State of
california, do hexeby certify:

That I reported the taking of the deposition
of the witness, GUY ADAMS, commencing on Thursday,
April 28,2016, at 10:13 a.m.;

That prict to being examined, the witness was,
by me, placed under oath to testify to the truth;
that said deposition was taken down by me
stenographically and thereafter transcribed;
that said deposition is a complete, true and
accurate transcription of said stenographic notes.

I further certify that I am not a relative or
an employee of any party to said action, ner in
anywise interested in the outcome thereof; that a
réquest has beén made toO review the transcript.

In witness whereof, 1 have hereunto

LORI RAYE
CSR No. 7052
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Attachment No, 9 and GWA Consulting lncome Soheduls
{Exhibit 1) |

Thé:attached schedule reflecs riy chaiigé inindame. | ne Jongarrecaive-an income
from Mercer (Column C)-andinchided in my aversge monthly income Line 5(a), page 2,
is @ opatine fae that Twill not raceive irv the fiskre and is not indicative of my

requlasfaverage income,

g Change In tncomé,
CuluinnA-~ is"at wil” on 2 ritopthiy basis
Columa B - s “atwill" and.is on a shortterm basis that can and abuptly
Golna G - This ncame ensid May 31, 2073

Coluinn ¥~ This incoive was a One-imofes. No futther compensation is
expecied from this soE.
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GWA CaPiTAL PARTHERS UE
Profit S loss
January through-Dscamber 2032

il i Sapital Asequnt
WA lavatiminty
gy fncpne
Tatal fhoame

‘o Ixpene
Hyak Sevuic Chang
Thaks BEndce
Dapeecianion
Pz e Subunipliong
Eegwipenitert Mol
Heanses atsd Padwlty
K arketing yad Sgies
Mol and Entgrtainaies
keigrediansous
e Suppties
Baakiens
Puritage s Delvey
AR
Lol
gy Frofessivoal Serdoes

Potet Proforsiungt Fesy §525.35

Rt - fe
Rest - Ottar
Pepairy and Maltgenance
Eofhears
frgome g
Fauss - ke

Tayad oy ASILR

Totapivn
fivkate
Lodging
e
Yan

Tesaiporiniion

Toand Trans 837128

Tkt Enpense

Het income

A2
Artruat Basis

TRLIR Y

2

Ja 0L
B985
pR=LL
0568
4358
580
HEEL s
§233
5,33245
15240
151881
51810
583
585000
FEBOY
#$32.36

238A06
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p s ¥

324
1LEGHG0

CR308.4%
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40872
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GWA CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC
Profit & Loss
fartisy through Décember 2013

Galit oni Capital Actount
GWA nvestmints
Total income-

Hank Servise Chigé
iats Service
Daprériation.

D gt Satsgsiptions’
Equipment Purchases
icenied dnd Fermits
‘Marketing ind Safes
Meafs and Extertaliiment
Slscetiinegiss

Office Supplies

Parking

Postage st Pulivery

Accoyinting )
Otliet Peofossional Servites

total Professional fees 639263

Ken - Other

Repairsead Maintenance
Sofhware

Toxes

Tetephinne

Atrbare
‘Looging

Gihey

Tast
Franspoittion
Tatat Trgvat

Total Expentes

Herest income.
Netintome

Adcrust Basls

$pu528 50
${id,520.59)

3900

" 1824608
530,00
5,379,488
471043
496900
B4.40
47831
9.9%
12,5089
1.976.03
20642

5.455.00
ALY

3.968.00
564525
1,130;38
3,954.00
R 3 ¥

337246
941187
7424
Hi00.
30B.A0

3533
S84 82941
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GWA Assety anil Lishilittes
{AsOf Avgost 31,2085
L3 N Stk
{aash Ll
Kioek FH4978
Caplist Pachyers
€a5s, koo
Hock WASE
Adlsiens _
Llogh, 1088 &
TOTALY SEEOTYE SR 98X
A
(o™ ] $44, 404
Tk R1.678
Retirement Phus fir
Tecarion Corponsiion ¥
Tl Jogk Value  W/R G
Febt o Tabites § @
* Dot Cﬁn&%‘ﬂm $sn Suin pest smpitymat in 109
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Avérage Combined Spending by Covegaty

1744011 throegh 11733 /3512
Categtiey

At Leave-iME
f”ﬁmmi
AUtoTFual UMK
Ato it Gy
Autadreucancs LV
Autriitense - Faus
AutaSanice

Aparitint Reat Gy
Bask Chatgs
Charftabls

Chiristinax < Gifts
Chrisvinzs 4 Gifts-LWX

Cotlege Faps ~ LMK

Clothing-Guy
Lathing-tMK

Degiendent Suppivt- UMK

Sotenainmhent - GHy
ErtestdinmentLMK

GoresipsFast fuods
Srocodivsifand Store.
Geoeties: Fobdd Storet MR

fisssehold:Gardenst
Housaholidmainienanicy
sotsafioldivaintdgance- Lty
Hetsig Expenses {Wels)
fising Expenss (4B}

Stousingt! interes-LMC Wl
Roging freerestAk-58

' ®

Aanual Expenses

S ﬁ;m »
4,806
za0m

753
1589 *
158
1844

3600
k733
.09
3%

3000 >

sdoon *

2800
4000 #

2,676
400 4

ah6h ¥
3,468
b ¥113

(%72
850

By 435 o0
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Propesty Ten-Wells - L«
Prapary Tax-58.- UK

‘Sarta Barbarn Homeowrers foe-LMK

Storagd Rental

Ingurance:tife Inturance
Rsurants-Houses - YK

Medical-Guy
medicakiMx
Misc-Guy
Mt tMK
titilitlas

Macatonriary
Wiacation- LMK

‘Wigjor Expendinres-LMK
Major Exfrenditurtis-Giy.

OVERALLTOTAL

*Estinfare

§1.878

¥1,760
3600

1,383
2,14
000
4,358

soop:

42,800

6000
;

4200

$31a,820
3 76565
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Exhibil 4
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o, harviliane and furtdebings for 3%
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Polisat romredons onsadiile) 1
Ruipsdipe and gilter sxpantes §57
Bani Shurgds 0
Crodl Card Intetest Dplnaes #
fradit Do Faosflonis for Dard 18

Testoet

Rz
g.
AIF

TA4444



B W N T g b N e

LR R R EEEEEEEEREE R

> B

PECLARATION OF GUY W, ADAMS
1, Guy W, Ades; declire as follows:
§.  ¥amhePeliionsr mihe instant inattér. | make and subroit this
declaration in suppost afiny Requestfor Order Re Spousal Support aod Atlameys:
Foes and Costs. “The favis statad haveln are known to me parsonally, and § salled
Gpon a8 & witriess; 1 could and wolld comptently tesify toreto.

2. lofferthis Declaratior in st of parsonal tesEmony, pursiant to §52008
an 20155 of the: Califormia Cotls of Civil Proeding, Rule 5.118(f) of Catifomia Reles:
of Court, and pursuant §o.the authority of Reiiér vs,. Superior Cotirt (1974) 39 Cal.
App:3d 478, and Mamiage aof Stavenol (1984) 154 CalApp.ad 1061,

4 Respondert, Lot M, Kwasigroch (hereirvafter “Lois") and ) married oo
Seplember.20, 2007 dud separaied on-Seplamber 1, 2013, a pariod of 5 years-and
11 months. We de riot have dny chifdiah together, iswiever, Lois fias-a daughter,

§ Anrieliso Mlexandar, age 20, frorm a piffer mantage:. Lois and { did hot sign 4

preiiupiial agreerment firior-to.otiv maniage
4 Ptiortoourmadage, | awned and operated tyobusinesses: GWA
Caplfal Pariners, an investment management company, and GWAAdvisors, a
investment consuiing fim. AR that ime; GWA Capifdl Partriars had folr employées. -
Frler fo bur miantage, both of iy busiitesses were prospeting, but the 2007-08 market
imetidowii resulted in significant invesirisnt fosses for both compantes, By the end

{ 2008, most of my investors had pulled-ort, and my bissinegses™ combined value had

declined by approximately 70%. Atthatime, 1 fiad to lay off all of my smployess.

| | Since that ime. ¢ have worked to.rebulld my businesses, {am curvently devoting most

of my time to advisory assignmerts, _
§ Lo is anattorney specializing in biotach patant itigstion. She staded
| working at har currentemplayef, Amgen, a. faw: munthis grior to our mdirisge in 2007,

.'—A . ) o . .*1-\

DECLARATION.OF GLIY W, ADAMS
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She is prasenty an Associate. General Counisel &t Amggen. Prior 10 staiting Work at
Amgjen, Lois wik a pariner at Jonew Day.
6. Lols income fai exceeds mie. Pursyant to our 2012 fax refurn, my

 gross income:from both of my Busihesses Was $100,350 hefore ary business

expetises, (Sée 2072 tax retuie, aftachert hereto as Exnibit“A"), Perssheddle £ of
our tax rettrs, my dusiness expenses ware $63.962. {See Exhibit"A"). My current
income is approdimetety 55,000 par month, most of which Leaim from shat-farm
consuliing assigninents.. Also, in 2013, my incume Kas decressed because my 10

yaar contract that € had wilth Mercet, atve of my mafor clignts, ended on May 3%, 2013,

7. Inconirast foume, Lois’ income hasnot been negatively impacted by the:

fecent economic regession. Pursuant o our 2012 tax retum, Lojs’ grogs income from.

her griployiment at Amgen was $742.035. (Se8 Exhibit *A’). Conidering Lols'
‘monthly incoivie of $64,833, riy. thionthly fricom of §5,000, bath of us filing a5 single.
¥ sinel claiming orfe deduction, and Lols® piopérty tix expenses of §1,167 and morlgage:

interast deduction:of $5,003, Lois"ménthly spousal support obfigation o me is

16] $22,377. (5ee Dissomaster, attached hereto as Exhibt "8,

ATHORNEYS FEES AND COSTS .

8 I addition io eaming sighificantly mors coms than mie, Lois e more.
‘asets tidn nie. 1h 2007, when Lok and { mamicd, my JRA accoiait had an
approximate baldnte of $151.987. Tuday the batafce of my IRA account is-fegs thar
$50.000. Mast. of the foss i value of my IRA was a résiilf of the 200708 market:

A dedline. 1have one othet refirement aceopnt which has an approXimate value of
§$20,000: Lois hiay several retirement accounts. Her. 401K and IRAs bave'

‘apprecialed significantly during dur meage, in lame part due o the confibions by
her employer. ) astimate thiat fhey currsnt valie of Lols’ 404(} 4ind 1RAS isTh exgess

1 of $500.,000. Y addifion to hér retirement stoaunt, Lois has. checking and savings

accotmis to which | do rol have Access, so b am uneware as 1o their current balances.

o 3 “Z

DECLARATION OF GUY W. ADAWS
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& additionto herfiquid wesels; Lots fies 4 rasidurice thet le prmedly e
sopacale property, Dusing our mantege, Lol sind | primanty: rediced I 5 fotee Which
Lods soquid i 1658, prioe 16 oor mandige. Although the residence is Lois! sapnrito
progwety; wo mads significant improvernenis jo the property dudng sur misgings ushg

J oucomenurty propery. Adttnally Lols riisinced the prupety tios g ur

- our sapsiiedion, Loie fiie ccritinued to resid in this property.

10, ‘OnMey 25, 2012; Lois and | pistineed 8 séoond horne in Monlacla,
‘Galifombi for $1.214927. The divn payment fof this prcheise cayme pradoringlely
“from Lol bonus payme recsived in Mard of tat year. Sice ooy purihase of this

_ wlmm han Incsated e Sics o separition, Lols Toebad
- exclusivia uié ard aexupancy of th Monseste propedy.

, 11 Since ouisaparation, § bave inclrred significint mipannes locas,
tmping snd Burvisbing anvapisitment witle Lofs has remalied ining in both of our

2. Addltionslly, | v it $10,000 b rebein an attomey fo represent e in
Thils. Bqaion. Based on Lol shalements. to me mgsmiing wuppost and divislon of ow
 anonts, | anticioat that | williiicir wignticent legal fes fiotors our dissoiition rmatie
in raniiad,

. 13, | spoctioly teqiiest that Lids be oidered o pay s $22,377 per month
as'anid Jor pousal niuppast. '

1%, 1 foilier teapentfiSy sequist that Lois e ordernsd to make & $25000
coeitiion 1 my atiohyeys fees- and coats forfhwith,

tdectiwa undir ponalty of peury $hat the foregaing ki true snd correct,
Exscited fis 7% duy-of Oolober 2012, wt B Segundo, Cabiomia,
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(Filed Separately Under Seal)
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DISTRICT CQURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J. COTTER, JR., )
individually and )
derivatively on behalf of)
Reading International, )
InC-;
Case No. A-15~719860-B
Plaintiff,

Coordinated with:

vS.
Case No. P~14-0820842-E
MARGARET COTTER, et al.,

and

READING INTERNATIONAL,
INC., & Mevada
¢corporation,

}
}
)
)
)
)
}
)
Defendants. )
)
)
)
)
}
)
Nominal Defendant)

}

VIDEQOTAPED DEPOSITION OF WILLIAM GOULD
TAKEN ON JUNE 8, 2016

VOLUME 1

JOB NUMBER 315485
REPORTED BY:

PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, CSR #3400
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WILLIAM GOULD, VOLUME I - 06/08/2016
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' Page 32
a. I learned that in Guy Adans's deposition

he admitted that a great percentage of his net worth
had come from the corporate -- not his net worth,
but his earnings had been derived from the
corporation and from the Cotter family.
' a. and by "the corporation" you're

referring to RDI?

A. RDI.

Q. What, if anything, did you do as a
cﬁnsequence of learning that information?

A. I was asked whether Guy Adams was —— if
I considered him independent for the purposes of his
service on the comp committee,

Q. Who asked you thak?

A. Craiyg Tompkins and Ellen Cotter.

Q. What was your response?

MR, SWANIS: I just want to object to
this line of questioning, object-On attorney-client
privilege.

T didn't know if you were heading into
the —- the person that asked him that.

MR, KRUM: Well, no. I haven't asked
about what Mr. Tompkins said —-—

MR. SWANIS: Let me finiszh.

MR. KRUM: I'm sorry. Go ahead.

Litigation Bervices | B00-330~1112
wew, Litigationservices.com
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) , Page 34
might be not independent for that type of

transaction.
And clearly if Mr. Adams's income was

substantially derived from Reading and the Cotter

‘family, if his whole livelihood depended on them, he

could not be independent in passing on the
compensation of the Cotter family menbers.

Q. What other types of transactions were
you referencing in your last answer, if any, beyond
passing on compensation ¢f Cotter family members?

A, That -- that's what I was referencing,
just that particular matter.

Q. TWhat types of transactions are subject
to the overriding test you just described?

MR, HELPERN: Objectien, Fozm.

MR. SWANIS: Join. Foundation.

THE WITNESS: Well, if a gquestion -- a
party, for example, was totally independent, has a
separate business relationship or transaction
proposed with the company, even though that person
might otherwise be independent for all other
purposes, that transaction brings into question that
person's independence with respect to that
transaction. That's what T was referring to.

1

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
wwi. litigationservices.com
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BY MR. KRUM:

Q. Mr. Gould, what other discussions, if
any, have you had with anyone regarding the subject
of Mr. Adams's indepsndence or lack of independence?

A. The only people I talked to about that
were Ellen and Craig Tompkins. I don't recall
discussing it with anybody else.

Q. Mr. Adams has resigned from the RDI
board of directors compensation committes, correct?

A, Yes,

Q. But he was on the RDI board of directors
compensation committee when it approved the
compensation packages —- the new compansation
packages for Ellen Cotter and Margaret Cotter
earlier inm calendar year 2016, correct?

| MR. HELPERN: Objection to foxm,
MR. SWANIS: Joim.
BY MR. KRUM:
Q. Mr. Adams alsoc was a vocal proponemt in
support of terminating Jim Cotter, Jc., correct?
MR. SWANIS: Objection to form.
THE WITNESS3: Yes.
MR. HELPERN: Join.
MR. RHOW: I'm —-
/11

Page 36

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www,litigationservices.com
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WILLIAM GOULD, VOLUME I - 06/0B/2016

Page 249

1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2
3 I, PATRICIA L. HUBBARD, do hereby certify:
. - .
3 That T am a duly gqualified Certified
6 Shorthand Reporéer in and for the State of California,
7 . holder of Certificate Number 3400, which is in full
B force and effect, and that I am authorized to
9 administer oaths and affirmations;
10
11 That the Fforegoing deposition testimony of
12 the herein named witness, to wit, WILLIAM GOULD, was
13  taken before me at the time and place herein set
14 forth;
15
16 That prior to being examined, WILLIAM
17 GOULD was duly sworn or affirmed by me to testify the
18  truth, the whole {ruth, and nothing but the truth;
19
20 That the testimony of the witness and all
21 cbjections made at the time of examination were
22  recorded stenographically by me and were thereafter
23 transcribed by me or under my diiection and
24 supexvision;
'25
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com
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WILLIAM GOULD, VOLUME I - 06/08/2016

_ Page 250
That the foregoing pages contain a full,

true and accurate record of the proceedings and

testimony to the best of my skill and ability;

I further certify that I am not a relative
or employee or attorney or counsel of any of the
parties, nor am I a relative or employee of such
attorney or counsel, nox am I financially interested

in the ontcome of this action,

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

iB
19
20

21

23
24

25

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my

name this 13th day of June, 2016.

/“i ]
. ‘/ £ Ao 4
.\‘-'! e
/;Zig;a&%&jiﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁzﬁme,f
/U

PATRICIA L. BUBBARD, CSR #3400

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
waw.litigationservices.com
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Confidential Spttlersent Memo of Understanding

e tlowing mlended S be uped a5 2 R of contiketis ot “eithunt prafdicn” seitfement
espotiuties hetreres Flen Conter anif Wagvgar Suties, on thenne hand, andt Jemes 1 Soltal, I NI
gee s gthar s i providatunder Burirdersbasiiag that shi cpnbents i g aaiitential and
HOUES Do vaid b dad Brigation o allier meatsading.

¥he prsiposed outhsed tiiow sobs ‘M:*& Y basie poowhih Elen Oner PEMET sod Ngrgarnt Gty
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MARX G. KRUM (Nevada Bar No. 10913)
MKrum@LRRC.com

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600

Lag Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 949-8200

(702) 949-8308 fax

Attorneys for Plaintiff
James J. Colter, Jr.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JAMES J, COTTER, JR., individnally and
derivatively on behalf of Reading International,
Inc.,

Plaintiff,
v

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
McEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, and
DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,

Defendants.

and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Nevada
corporation;

Norminal Defendant.

T2 PARTNERS MANAGEMENT, LP, a
Delaware limited parinership, doing business as
KASE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, et al.,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

MARGARET COTTER, ELLEN COTTER,
GUY ADAMS, EDWARD KANE, DOUGLAS
MCEACHERN, WILLIAM GOULD, JUDY
CODDING, MICHAEL WROTNIAK, CRAIG
TOMPKINS, and DOES 1 through 100,

inclusive,

2011077779_1

CASENO., A-15-719860-B
DEPT, NO. X1

Coordinated with:

CASE NO. P-14-082942-E
DEPT. NG, XI

CASENO. A-16-735305-B
DEPT. NO. X1

Joirily administered

DECLARATION OF PLAINTIFF
JAMES J. COTTER, JR. IN
OPPOSITION TO ALL INDIVIDUAL
DEFENDANTS' MOTIONS FOR
PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT
(AND GOULD JOINDERS)

[Business Court Requested: [EDCR 1.61]

(Exempt Erom Arbitration; declaratory
relief requested; action in equity]
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Defendants.

and

READING INTERNATIONAL, INC,, 2
Nevada corporation,

Nominal Defendant,

1, James J. Cotter, Jr. hereby declare, under the penalty of perjury and the laws of Nevada,
as follows;

1. I am over eighteen (18) years of age. 1 have personal knowledge of the facts
contained in this declaration, except on those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to
those matters, I believe them to be true, If called upon to testify as to the contents of this
declaration, I am Jegally competent to do so in a court of law.

2, 1 am the Plaintiff in the above-captioned action. I am, and af all times relevant
hereto was, a sharsholder of RDIL I have been a director of RDI since on or about March 21, 2002.
1 have been involved in RDI management since mid-2005, I was appointed Vice Chairman of the
RDI board of directors in 2007 and President of RDI on or about June 1, 2013. I was appointed
CEQ by the RDI Board on or about August 7, 2014, immediately after James J. Cotter, Sr. (JIC,
St.) resigned from that position. I am the son of fhe late JJC, Sr., and the brother of defendants
Margaret Cotter (“MC™) and Ellen Cotter (“EC”). I presently own approximately 560,186 shares
of RDI Class A non-voting stock and options to acquire another 50,000 shares of RDI Class A
non-voting stock. 1 am also the co-trustee and beneficiary of the James J. Cotter Living Trust,
dated Avgust 1, 2000, as amended (the "Trust"), which owns 2,115,539 shares of RDI Class A
(non-voting) stock and 1,123,888 shares of RDI Class B (voting) stock. The Trust became
imevocable upon the passing of JIC, Sr. on September 13, 2014,

3 I sui)mit this declaration in support of the appositions to all of the motions for
summary judgment filed by one or more of the individual defendants in this action.

4. Nominal defendant Reading Ioternational, Inc. (RDI or Company) is a Nevada
corporation and is, according to its public filings with the United States Securities and Exchange

2011077779_1 : 2
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Commission (the "SEC™), an internationally diversified company principally focused on the
development, ownership and operation of entertainment and real estate assets in the United States,
Australia and New Zealand, The Company operates in two business segments, namely, cinema
exhibition, through approximately 58 multiplex cinemas, and real estate, including real estate
development and the rental of retail, commercial and live theater assets. The Company manages
world-wide cinemag in the United States, Australia and New Zealand. RIDI has two classes of
stock, Class A stock held by the investing public, which stock exercises no voting rights, and
Class B stock, which is the sole voting stock with respect to the election of directors. An
ovenvhehning' tajority (approximately eighty percent (80%)) of the Class A stock is legally
and/or beneficially owned by shareholders unrelated to me, EC or MC. Approximately seventy
percent (70%) of the Class B stock is subject to disputes and pending trust and estate litigation in
California between EC and MC, on the one hand, and me, on the other band, and a probate action
in Nevada. Of the Class B stock, approximately forty-fonr percent (44%) is held in the name of the
Trust, RDI is named only as a nominal defendant in this derivative action.

5. 1signed a verification of a Second Amended Verified Complaint (the “SAC”) in
this action. 1 Stand by the substantive allegations of the SAC and incorporate them hereinby
reference.

The Position of CEQ at RDXY

6. Certain of the motions for summary judgment brought by the individual defondants
in this action suggest that I was appointed CEO of RDI in August 2014 after what amounted to no
deliberation by the Board of Directors, That is absolutely false. Tu fact, as carly as 2006, James J
Cotter, St. (“JIC, Sr.™), then the CED and controlling shareholder of RDI, had comumunicated to
the RD1 board of directors his proposed succession plan for the positions of President and CEC.
That plan was for me to work under the direction of JC, Sr. to learn the businesses of RDJ,
including by functioning in a senior excontive role.

1. Since 2005, 1 was involved in most RDI executive maﬁagement meetings and
privy to most significant internal senior management memos, As mentioned above, I was

appointed Viee Chairman of the RDI board in 2007. The RDI Board appointed me President of

2011077779 _1 3
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RDI on or about June 1, 2013, and I filled those responsibilitics without objection by the RDI
board of directors, .

8. Soon after [ became CEQ, my sisters, Ellen, who was an executive at RDI in the
domestic civema segment of the Company’s business, and Margaret, who managed RDI's limited
live theater operations as a third-party consultant, both communicated to me and to members of
the RDI Board of Directors that they did not want to teport to me as CEQ. In fact, neither of them
previously while working for or with the Company effectively had ever reported to anyone ofher
than our father, JJC, St, Margaret in pﬁﬁcﬂar resisted and effectively refused to report to me until
she no longer needed to do so, following my (purported) termination ag President and CEO of the
Company. They also ¢o-opted at least one employee, Linda Pham, who claimed at some point in
2014 that I had created a hostile work environment for her, which accusation was not well-taken
and, in any event, moot with the passage of time by Spring 2015, as director Kane acknowledged
at the time.

Disputes With My Sisters

9, My sisters and 1 had certain disputes with respect to matters of our father’s estate.
The most significant and contentions dispute concerned who would be the trustee or trustees of the
voting trast that, following our father’s death, holds approximately 70% of the voting stock of
RD According to a 2013 amendment to his trust documentation, Margaret was to be the sole
trugtee, Purgnant to a 2014 amendment to his trust documentation, Margaret and I wers to serve
cohtcmporaneously as co-trustees, In early February 2015, Ellen and Margaret commenced a
lawsnit in California state court challenging the validity of the 2014 amendment to our father’s
trust documents (the “California Trust Action™).

10. My sisters and 1 also had certain disputes with respect to RDI. Most generally, they
disagreed with my view and approach of running RD] like a public company, including hiring a
senjor executive qualified to oversee the development of the Company’s valuable real estate and,
mere fiundamentally, operating the Company to increase jts value for all shareholders, not just its

value to the Cotter family as controlling shareholders.
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Threatened Termination and Termination

11.  Late in the day on May 19, 2015, 1 received from Ellen, as the chairperson of the
RDI Board of Directors, an agenda for a supposed special meeting of the RDI board on May 21,
2015, two days later. I learned that the benignly described first item on the agenda, “status of
president and CEO,” apparently referred to a secret plan of Ellen and Margaret, together with Ed
Kane, Guy Adams and Doug McEachem, to vote to remove me as President and CEO of RDIL
However, that meeting commenced and concluded without the threatened vote being taken.

12, Next, on or about May 27, 2015, the lawyer representing Ellen and Margaret in the
California Trust Action transmitted to my lawyer in that action a document that proposed to
resolve the disputes between my sisters and me, inclﬁding with respect to who wounld be the
trustee of the voting trust and whether Margaret and Ellen would report to me as CEO of RDL (A
true and correct copy of the May 27, 2015 document, which was marked as deposition exhibit 322,
is atiached hereto as exhibit “A.”)

13,  On Friday, May 29, 2015, the (supposed) special board meeting of May 21 was to
resume. That morning, before the meeting, I met with Ellen and Margaret. At that meeting, they
told me that they were unwilling to mediate or to negotiate any of the terms of the May 27
document described above. They also fold me that if T did not agree to resolve my disputes with
them on the terms set ont in that document, that the RDI Board of Directors would vote at the
(supposed) meeting that day to terminate me as President and CEQ.

14,  The (supposed) special board meeting commenced on May 29 and the issue of my
termination as President and CEO was the subject. At this (supposed) special meeting, or another,
McBachern pressured me to tesign as President and CEO. Eventually, the non-Cotter members of
the RDI Board of Directors met with my sisters separately from me. Following that, the majority
of the non-cotter directors, namely, Messrs. Adams, Kane and McEachern, advised me that the
meeting would adjourn temporarily and resume telephonically at 6 p.m. They further advised that,
if I had not reached a resolution of disputes between me and my sisters by the time the (supposed)

special meeting reconvened telephonically at 6 p.m. that day, they would proceed with the vote to

2011077779 1 5
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terminate me, meaning that the three of themn would vote to terminate me as President and CEO of
RDL

15.  That afternoon, Ellen and Margaret again tefused to mediate and again refused to
negotiate. Ultimately, I indicated a willingness to resolve disputes based on the document
provided, subject to conferring with counsel. At or about 6 p.m., the (supposed) special RDI board
mesting resumed telephonically, at which time Ellen reported to the five non-Cotter directors that
we had reached an agreement-_in principle to resclve our disputes, subject to conferring with
respective counsel, Ed Kane congratulated us and made a statement to the effect that he hoped that
T 'was CEO of the Company for 30 years. No vote was taken on my termination.

16.  On or about June 8, 2015, I communicated to my sisters that I could not agree to
the document their lawyer had transmitted to my lawyer on or about June 2, 2015. Ellen called a
(supposed) special board meeting for June 12, 2015, at which meeting each of Messrs. Adams,
Kane and McEacherm made good on their threat to vote to terminate me and did so.
Director Interest and Independence

17. One or more of the defendants’ motions for summary judgment claim that SEC
filings by RDI describe the non-Cotter directors as “independent,” that I signed one or more of]
those SEC filings and that I therefore admit that those directors are independent for the purposes
of this action. That is inaccurate, The term “independent™ as used in RDI’s SEC filings do not
refer to matiers of Nevada law, It referred usnally to the fact that, pursnant to the terms of the
Company’s listing agreement with NASDAQ), the stock exchange on which RDI stock trades,
directors meet the standard of independence of NASDAQ. None of the director defendants have
ever suggested to me that they undérstood use of the term “independent” ia RDY's SEC filings to
commuuicate anything other than that non-Cotter directors were not members of the Cotter family
which, in one manner or another, controlled approximately 70% of the voting stock of RDI. As
among members of the RDI Board of Directors, the term “independent” was nsed historically to
refer to directors who were not members of the Cotter family, '

18.  Fd Kane was a life-long friend of my father, having met when they were graduate

students. Kane was in my father’s wedding and was a speaker at my father’s funeral. Over my
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lengthy tenure as a director at RDL, 1 observed Kane as a director of RDI acting at all times as if;
his job as a director was to carry out my father’s wishes. Kane admitted to me that he was not
independent for purposes other than the NASDAQ listing agreement and suggested after [ became
CEQ that the Company would benefit from independent directors knowledgeable about its two
principal businesses, cinemas and real estate.

19. On the contentious issue between me and my sisters regarding who would be the
trustee(s) of the voting trust, Kane commumicated to me that his view was that it was my fathers’
" wishes that Margaret alone be the trustee, and he pressured me to agree to that, At one point in the
context of discussions regarding terminating me as President and CEO of RDI, Kane said to me
augrily that he thought I “fe#*ed Margaret” by the 2014 amendment to my father’s trust
documentation, which amendment made me a co-frustee with Margaret of the voting trust.

20.  Kane remains very close with my sisters, who still call him “Uncle Ed™ (which I
ceased doing after joining RDI). They continuc to get together socially, including for family meals
during- holiday periods, which is what they admittedly did around the Christmas holidays in 2015,

21.  Guy Adams is a long time friend of my father, After Adams effectively became
unemployed, my father attempted to provide him work and income, Eventually, my father through
a company he wholly-owned entered into an agreement with Adams to pay Adams $1000 per
month, That company now is part of my father’s estate, of which my sisters are execntors, such
that they are in 2 position to control whether Adams is paid that money or not. Adams also bas
carried interests in certain real estate in which my father invested. My sisters as executors of my
father’s estate are in positiﬁn to see to it that Adams is or is not paid any monies he is owed on
account of those carried jnterests,

22.  Prior to on or about May 2015, Adam’s financial condition and, more particularly,
his dependence on or independence from my sisters, in terms of his financial sitvation, had not
arisen as a subject. When I suspected that Adams had agreed with my sisters to vote to terminate
me as President and CEO of RDY, that raised the issue of whether he was financially dependent on
them. I now kuow that he is. I learned from Adams’ sworn declarations in his California state

court divoree case that almost all of his income comes from RDI and from one or more companies
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that my sisters control, Adams is not independently wealthy. I asked him about his financial
dependence or independence at the (supposed) May 21, 2015 special board meeting, at which time
he refused to answer.

23.  Michael Wrotniak’s wife Trisha was Margaret’s roommate in her freshman year of
college at Georgetown University. Margaret and Trisha have been life-long best friends starting
with their first year in college together. Michael also went to Geprgetown University where he
met his wife Trisha and also developed a very close friendship with Margaret in college. Given
that Margaret only has a few friends, her relationship with Trisha and Michael is extremely
important. Margaret has spent a lot of time with Michael and his wife over the years, as all three
live in metropolitan New York City. Margaret became like an aunt to Trisha and Michael’s
children. My sister Ellen and mother also know Trisha and Michael very well, and they have all
attended social events together in New York, such as birthday and cocktail parties my sister
Margaret has hosted at her apartment in New York City. I believe Margéret’s oldest child refers to
Trisha and Michael as Aunt and Uncle. Michael’s communication with me as a director has been
very guarded, which I understand to reflect his knowledge of the lawsuit and his close relationship
with Margaret. 5

24.  Judy Codding has had a very close personal relationship with my mother for more
than thirty years. (Ellen lives with our mother, who has chosen my sisters’ side in the disputes
between us.) Ms. Codding has become close with my sisters Ellen and Margaret. On October 13,
2015, over breakfast I had with her, she expressed to me that RDI is a family business and that the
only people who should manage it should be one of the Cotters and that she would help make sure
of that, whether it be Bllen or me. Her reaction to the offer to purchase all of the stock of the
Company at a price in excess of what it trades in the market (the “Offer”), first made by
correspondence dated on or about May 31, 2015, reflected Ms. Codding’s unwavering loyalty to
Ellen. Before the board meeting at wﬁich the Board was going to discuss the Offer, she indicated
to me that there was 1o way that the Offer should even be considered. (clearly having spoken to
Ellen about it before the board meeting),

2011077719_1 8
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